From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Eagle letter for today
Date: Wednesday, May 19, 2021 12:00:39 PM
Attachments: Eagle Landmark Status Letter 2021.pdf

Jonas P Ionin

Director of Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: "Westhoff, Alex (CPC)" <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>

Date: Wednesday, May 19, 2021 at 11:53 AM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: Eagle letter for today

Hello,
An additional LOS for the Eagle Landmark Designation. Please forward to the HPC if it is not too late.
Thanks,

Alex

From: Gayle Rubin <grubin@umich.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, May 19, 2021 11:50 AM

To: Westhoff, Alex (CPC) <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Eagle letter for today

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hi Alex, my apologies for getting this to you late-- but | may not be able to get through on the phone.
So here's a letter, hopefully that can be submitted. This one is just from me, on my university
letterhead...

Also, when you get a chance, could you please send me the final version of the report? Or if you did
and | missed it, LMK.

thanks!!1!
Gayle


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

| $A ANTHROPOLOGY

UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAM

101 West Hall
1085 South University Avenue
Ann Arbor, MI 48109-1107
ph: 734-764-7274
fax: 734-763-6077
May 19, 2021 Re: Eagle Landmark Designation

Historic Preservation Commission
City and County of San Francisco
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

Dear Commissioners:

I write to express my fervent support for the landmark designation of the SF Eagle. The Eagle
has been a central institution of the LGBTQ and Leather communities for four decades. Since it opened
in 1981, it has served as a social and political nexus for these populations, both across the Bay Area,
but also particularly in the South of Market neighborhood. It has been a critical venue for fund raising,
especially during the early period of the AIDS epidemic. It has hosted countless political campaigns,
musical performances, and community meetings. Innumerable other events have taken place on its
famed patio. The Eagle has been a draw for tourists, regularly welcoming visitors from all over the
world: it has an international reputation. And it has been a geographic anchor that has helped the
Leather and LGBTQ communities maintain their coherence, even during challenging periods.

When the SF Eagle first opened, the Leather and LGBTQ presence South of Market were
extensive, and boasted dozens of important sites. But the Eagle has been the most durable and long
lasting; it is now one of the handful of such businesses that remain. It is an essential site that helps these
communities maintain their foothold in the neighborhood, and which keeps them vibrant and vital. I
urge you to designate it as the landmark it so richly deserves to be.

Sincerely,

ot futroe—

Gayle Rubin
Associate Professor of Anthropology and Women’s and Gender Studies






Gayle Rubin

Associate Professor
Anthropology

Women's and Gender Studies
University of Michigan

Department of Anthropology
101 West Hall

1085 South University Avenue
Ann Arbor, Michigan 48109-1107
734-764-7274 (phone)
734-763-6077 (fax)



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 233 Geary Renovation (I Magnin Building)
Date: Wednesday, May 19, 2021 7:44:30 AM

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

From: "Vimr, Jonathan (CPC)" <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 4:23 PM

To: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: 233 Geary Renovation (I Magnin Building)

HiJonas,

Please see the below comment addressed to the ARC but sent just to me (and Woody from SF
Heritage).

Thanks!
Jon

From: rvpsf@sonic.net <rvpsf@sonic.net>

Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 4:20 PM

To: Vimr, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>
Cc: wlabounty@sfheritage.org

Subject: 233 Geary Renovation (I Magnin Building)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

To the Architectural Review Committee:

| understand that the Architectural Review Committee is open to public comments on
the proposed renovation of the | Magnin Building at 233 Geary. Here are my thoughts
on the proposal.

The San Francisco Planning Commission has a checkered history regarding Union
Square and this particular building. It approved the demolition of the contextually


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

important Fitzhugh building in favor of the ponderous and mediocre Saks Fifth
Avenue store. It allowed the City of Paris department store to be removed in favor of
a flashy Phillip Johnson Neiman Marcus. In addition, it permitted the main floor of I.
Magnin's with its Rose and Tennessee marble walls, silver-leafed ceiling, and hand-
painted murals to be replaced with a sunken shopping mall. When that failed
miserably, it approved ground floor renovations to accommodate new retail spaces
without much consideration for nuance. To its credit, it also sanctioned the imposing
Apple store.

While | have no objection to the re-purposing of the | Magnin building to
accommodate both offices and housing, my impression is that the proposed
renovation would severely compromise Timothy Pflueger's elegant and refined
modernist building. Here's why.

1) The ground floor: The new arrangement of spaces and entrances has little or no
relation to the original carefully calibrated and almost classical upper floor
configuration of windows. It feels heavy and fussy (the addition of bronze and
canopies on one end only), contrary to the unadorned and orderly progression of the
upper floors. This destroys the unified whole that Pflueger achieved. It's as if two
different buildings were competing with each other. Much better to keep the current
order of four original windows on the north front and improve on the re-configured
entrances authorized earlier by the Planning department.

2) The upper floor reconfiguration; Adding another window size at the top destroys
the facade's architectural order and geometric rationale. The additional window
sashes on the upper three floors add another distraction to that logic. Pflueger's order
is complex yet satisfying; the new proposal borders on chaos and throws the entire
facade off balance.

3) Materials: Pflueger envisioned a streamlined black and white facade comprised of
white Vermont marble, black granite, and dark metal-framed (aluminum?) windows.
There's a simple elegance to his building. The new proposal adds bronze to the first
floor and upper window frames and what appears to be a lighter tint to the windows.
This changes the building's color palette and compromises the stylistic harmony and
coherence of the original scheme. This would likely result in yet another bland,
undifferentiated Union Square building.

Timothy Pflueger was one of the best architects the Bay Area ever produced. What's
left of his legacy should be respected and preserved. The |. Magnin building was the
last project of his career and one of the best modernist buildings in the city. Its
elegance and simplicity are a reminder of how great buildings can transcend their era
and continue to be important and central to our lives. We must be mindful of how we
treat them.

Kind regards,

Roger Parodi






From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Additional Letters of Support - Eagle Landmark Designation
Date: Wednesday, May 19, 2021 7:43:19 AM

Attachments: Case No. 2021-001853DES.msg

Eagdle bar.msg
Case No. 2021-001853DES the dhistorical esignation of the San Francisco Eaale bar.msa
SF Eagle Support Letter - HPC.docx.pdf

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

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 4:55 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Additional Letters of Support - Eagle Landmark Designation

Hello,

This afternoon | received four additional letters of support for the SF Eagle Landmark Designation.
Please forward to the Historic Preservation Commissioners. Thank you.

Alex

Alex Westhoff, AICP (he/him)

Senior Planner | Current Planning and Preservation
Southeast Quadrant

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7314 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit
Center is open on a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and
Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to
participate. Find more information on our services here.
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Case No. 2021-001853DES

		From

		TJ Smith

		To

		Westhoff, Alex (CPC)

		Recipients

		alex.westhoff@sfgov.org






This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.











Dear Alex,


I am writing in support of Case No. 2021-001853DES, the designation of the San Francisco Eagle bar in South of Market to become a historic landmark.


The history of the bar, how vital it is to local LGBTQ culture, and the incredible amount of money raised for charity at the bar over the years are but some of the reasons designating it a historic landmark is appropriate.


In addition, it has served the global LGBTQ community as meeting center, safehouse and destination over the last few decades.  As a former resident, who now lives elsewhere I can attest that this institution has significance not only to locals, but to visitors alike.





Thank you for taking the time to read this.








Eagle bar

		From

		Peter Berman

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





Pete Berman, MD








Case No. 2021-001853DES, the dhistorical esignation of the San Francisco Eagle bar

		From

		unson@aol.com

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


 


The history of the bar, how vital it is to local LGBTQ culture, and the incredible amount of money raised for charity at the bar over the years are reason enough for designating it a historic landmark is appropriate.  However, one really needs to also focus on its history and the truly unique role it played in helping the LGBTQ community overcome the AIDS crisis.  We lost an entire generation of gay men to AIDS, those members of the community who would typically have grown up and taught our youth how to be upstanding leaders, the “men” of our community.  The SF Eagle is the place we gathered to support each other through hard times , and to this day, it’s one of the few places where young members of the LGBTQ community can still gather with survivors of the AIDS crisis and learn about the history of our community.


 


Thank you for taking the time to read this.


 


Paul Unson


San Mateo








May 18, 2021

Historic Preservation Commission
City and County of San Francisco
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

Dear Commissioners,

We are writing in support of the SF Eagle’s landmark designation. The Eagle has been a linchpin in the
SOMA culture for many years and is an important partner for the LEATHER & LGBTQ Cultural District. Its
famed Sunday Beer Bust is a stand-by for hundreds, if not thousands, of patrons every week. It is a
priority destination for out-of-town visitors, as well as providing a fundraiser for dozens of local
nonprofits every year.

It has been the home of countless live music shows, contests, and social events. It is more than a bar,
more than a series of events, it is an institution of the gay community’s culture. For many, the SF Eagle IS
SOMA. Being granted historical landmark status would help ensure that this cornerstone of the
community remains the resource it has been for so many years.

We strongly urge the passage of SF Eagle’s landmark designation on behalf of the residents of SOMA,
visitors to the District, and the neighboring businesses which benefit from the consistent influx of
patrons. It is an extremely significant piece of our cultural heritage and an important factor in the vitality
of the LEATHER & LGBTQ Cultural District.

Sincerely,
1 M s
/ ' -,
Bob Goldfarb

President, LEATHER & LGBTQ Cultural District






From: So, Lydia (CPC)

To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC)
Subject: Re: HPC OSB Letter 05/19/21

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 9:08:05 PM

Thanks Jonas,
Looks good to me. I have no further comments or edits.

Lydia So, AIA
Historic Preservation Commissioner

From: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:17:51 AM

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC)
<marcelle.boudreaux@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: HPC OSB Letter 05/19/21

Commissioners,

Per Commission President Matsuda’s request, this DRAFT is being forwarded for your review and
consideration. If there are no significant edits and no objection, Diane, will sign and we will forward
with your consent.

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

From: Marcelle Boudreaux <marcelle.boudreaux@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 8:30 AM

To: "Matsuda, Diane (CPC)" <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>

Cc: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: HPC OSB Letter 05/19/21

Hi Commissioner Matsuda;

Thanks for your comments on the draft yesterday. | incorporated them and have attached a PDF
dated 5/19/21. | think it’s ready for your signature, to note during your announcements, but let me
know if there are last minute modifications.

Assuming it’s ready to go tomorrow, Jonas can send out on the Commission’s behalf.

Thanks!

Marcelle Boudreaux, AICP, Principal Planner
Citywide Cultural Resource Survey & Landmarks | Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning


mailto:Lydia.So@sfgov.org
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49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7375 | www.sfplanning.org
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
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From: Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC)

To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC)
Subject: Re: HPC OSB Letter 05/19/21

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:35:34 AM

Sounds good to me. Please send.

Jonathan Pearlman

ELEVATIONarchitects
1159 Green Street, Suite 4
San Francisco, CA 94109

(v) 415.537.1125 x101
(c) 415.225.3973

From: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 11:17 AM

Cc: "Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)" <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>, "Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC)'
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

Subject: FW: 5/19 HPC hearing support letter

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:29:09 AM
Attachments: Eaale GLBTHS Support Letter HPC 051721.pdf

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

From: Terry Beswick <terry@glbthistory.org>

Date: Monday, May 17, 2021 at 5:37 PM

To: "Matsuda, Diane (CPC)" <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>

Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>, "lonin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Westhoff, Alex (CPC)" <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>, "Mahogany,
Honey (BOS)" <honey.mahogany@sfgov.org>, Alex Montiel <lex@thesfeagle.com>
Subject: 5/19 HPC hearing support letter

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Attached please find our letter in support of landmarking the SF Eagle.

Terry Beswick
Executive Director
Image removed by sender.

GLBT Historical Society

989 Market St., Lower Level

San Francisco, CA 94103

(415) 777-5455x 5

Facebook | Instagram | Twitter | Website
(Gender pronouns. he/him/his)
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GLBT
Historical
Society

museum & archives

San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission
ATTN: Diane Matsuda, President
By email: diane.matsuda@sfgov.org

May 17, 2021
Dear President Matsuda:

| am writing to you today on behalf of the GLBT Historical Society in strong support of the
recommendation to the Board of Supervisors for the Landmark Designation of the San Francisco
Eagle Bar, a legacy business that has been located at 396-398 12t Street since 1981.

An anchor institution for the LGBTQ & Leather Cultural District adjacent to the new Eagle Plaza, the
San Francisco Eagle exemplifies the intent of the City’s several groundbreaking efforts to preserve
and protect the living culture of San Francisco, including the Legacy Business Program, the Cultural
Districts Ordinance, and the San Francisco LGBTQ Cultural Heritage Strategy.

Currently, there are nearly 300 landmarked sites in San Francisco, and only 6 are associated with the
LGBTQ community. With your support, the San Francisco Eagle will be the 7th LGBTQ landmark, the
first in the South of Market, and the first with a Leather association.

We emphatically support the landmarking of the San Francisco Eagle based on its historic
contributions to the city, and in the interest of a more equitable San Francisco.

Thank you for your consideration.

Yours sincerely,

T D

Terry Beswick
Executive Director

cc. commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
alex.westhoff@sfgov.org
lex@thesfeagle.com
honey.mahogany@sfgov.org

Archives and Research Center: 989 Market, Lower Level ¢ San Francisco, CA 94103 ¢ (415) 777-5455
Museum: 4127 18th St.  San Francisco, CA 94114 « (415) 621-1107 » www.glbthistory.org



http://www.glbthistory.org/
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Westhoff, Alex (CPC)
Subject: FW: Eagle Landmark Designation - Letters of Support
Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:28:51 AM

Attachments: Eagle GLBTHS Support Letter HPC 051721.pdf

Referencing Case No. 2021-001853DES..msg

The SF Eagle (Case No. 2021-001853DES.).msq

SF Eagle Historic Landmark Designation Case No. 2021-001853DES.msg
Case No. 2021-001853DES.msg

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

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 11:24 AM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Eagle Landmark Designation - Letters of Support

Hello,

Attached are five letters of support for the Eagle Landmark Designation (2021-001853DES) which |
have received since the case report was published. Please forward to the Historic Preservation
Commissioners. Please confirm once they have been forwarded. Thank you.

Regards,

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

mailto:diane.matsuda@sfgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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mailto:lex@thesfeagle.com
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Referencing Case No. 2021-001853DES.

		From

		Sumiko Saulson

		To

		Westhoff, Alex (CPC)

		Recipients

		alex.westhoff@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.





 





Dear Mr. Westhoff,





I am writing to support the designating of The Eagle as an important cultural, historical, and community institution and in support of its historical preservation. Not only is it an important cultural institution in San Francisco's gay community, and leather community, but it is one of the few remaining live music venues of its size. 

With so many important South of Market venues having been shut down due to a combination of the pandemic / shelter-in-place and real estate profiteering in the dotcom era, it is important to protect the community institutions ones we still have left. Over the past year, the South of Market Cultural District lost Slims, Brainwash, and The Stud. The Stud particularly hit home for the kinky and queer culture in the South of Market area. 

I am proud to be a part of the Leather and LGBTQ Cultural District in my role as the host of the Erotic Storytelling Hour. I am proud of the effort the LCD has made to be inclusive of all of the races, ethnicities, genders and sexualities that the South of Market Leather and LGBTQ Cultural District represents.I am excited about Eagle Plaza, and the spirit of that inclusion which it embraces and represents. That we are making a safer, greener, more lovely space for the community, which will be inviting to new people in our community and create safe spaces for existing community, is very laudable.





However, we do not seek to be gentrifiers. If we want to maintain a sense of history, culture, and authenticity then we absolutely must protect the Eagle and all that it stands for.

Around since 1981, The Eagle is San Francisco's oldest still existing leather bar. It is the oldest continuing LGBTQ space of any kind in South of Market. Although it was not the first leather bar in the area (the Stud opened in 1966) it has outlived the others. I say this with sadness, because I used to go to the Stud in the 80s, with my friend since high school, Michael McElhaney, who used to own it until a few years back. We have lost so much history already that I don't we think we can afford to lose anymore.






For those of us like myself, who are old enough to remember the HIV epidemic in the eighties, and at it's height in the early 90s before the cocktail, there are a lot of bitter sweet memories attached with the Eagle. There is an entire history of the LGBTQ and Leather community that is tied this era, and which should not be lost. It should neither be glossed over, nor converted into things that memorialize it, but were not a living, breathing part of the experience - the way the Eagle, which lost 22 staff members to the virus - do. 

The fact is that we cannot resurrect the part of the 60s queer culture and history that was removed from our City and painted from dark blue with rainbows and murals to the dullest tincture of pale conformity. when we lost The Stud. What we CAN do is to protect the Eagle, which still stands. The Eagle has been a part of the after Folsom Street Fair and after Dore Alley crowd forever. It's karaoke Mondays, and it's Disco Daddy parties, which I joyously attended with my equally queer compatriot, Natalya Fay, an out and proud lesbian (may she rest in peace) and Disco bear friend Marc Sanchez, while geared towards the gay male leather crowd, were always friendly to other visiting bits of queer wildlife from the local leather culture. But it is, first and foremost, a safe haven for gay leather culture and should be preserved as such. 



Sincerely,




Sumiko Saulson, author
Writer of Dark Speculative Fiction
wwww.SumikoSaulson.com



Pronouns: ze/hir/hirs

Sumiko Saulson is an award-winning author of Afrosurrealist and multicultural sci-fi and horror. Ze is the editor of the anthologies and collections Black Magic Women, Scry of Lust, Black Celebration, and Wickedly Abled. Ze is the winner of the 2016 HWA StokerCon "Scholarship from Hell", 2017 BCC Voice "Reframing the Other" contest, and 2018 AWW "Afrosurrealist Writer Award."

Ze has an AA in English from Berkeley City College, and writes a column called "Writing While Black" for a national Black Newspaper, the San Francisco BayView. Ze is the host of the SOMA Leather and LGBT Cultural District's "Erotic Storytelling Hour."









The SF Eagle (Case No. 2021-001853DES.)

		From

		Tristissima et alia

		To

		Westhoff, Alex (CPC)

		Recipients

		alex.westhoff@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.





 





Hello, Alex.  My legal name is Chris Hughes, and I would like to add my support to the designation of the San Francisco Eagle Bar as a historical landmark.





I am beyond lucky, as a nonbinary person (now legally! yay California!) with a marginalized sexuality to have been born in the Bay Area.  Of all of the major cities of the United States, San Francisco has historically led the nation as a center of LGBTQIA+ culture.  I grew up knowing that I had a community and a people nearby, that I wasn't completely alone, and that **very literally** kept me alive through some of the hard times.





The SF Eagle is part and parcel of that knowing which has saved my life.  It is an undeniable and visible reminder that I have a history.  Its instantly recognizable facade, to this day, unknots the muscles in my shoulders when I see it and I pass it, comforting me with the idea that this is a place in which I am welcome.





Please help preserve that vital institution of San Francisco's respect for LGBTQIA+ and people with marginalized sexualities.  It will literally save lives, and it will keep alive an important source of employment and site for networking for an economically disadvantaged community (as an example, last I knew 25% of nonbinary people were unemployed, and the median annual income of my community was $30,000).





Thank you very much!





********************************






Become my patron on Patreon (https://www.patreon.com/queermythopoeia) to support my RPG writing and streaming!  Find me on all the social medias by means of my Linktree (https://linktr.ee/queermythopoeia)






Si uales, ualeo, 


Christopher Douglas Salvatore Hughes............ Grok Amiri


Princess Teacup................Sertor Ualerium Tristissima Liber 


Staci Everheart...................................................Wizard Lizard 


et alia laughing and weeping............................................Flurp 


Pope Uncommon the Dainty...............................Skunkheart


Dionysia Sacredmirror.............................Kaleidoscope Eyes


Darcy Marie Salvadora Hughes.....................Merlin Monroe


Gandalfina Ixtliyollotl Face-and-Heart








SF Eagle Historic Landmark Designation / Case No. 2021-001853DES

		From

		Race Bannon

		To

		Westhoff, Alex (CPC)

		Recipients

		alex.westhoff@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.





 





Dear Alex,






I am writing in support of Case No. 2021-001853DES, the designation of the San Francisco Eagle bar in South of Market to become a historic landmark.





The history of the bar, how vital it is to local LGBTQ culture, and the incredible amount of money raised for charity at the bar over the years are but some of the reasons designating it a historic landmark is appropriate.





Thank you for taking the time to read this.





Race Bannon


race@racebannon.com


Pronouns: he/him/his


Support my work by becoming a member of my Patreon or subscribe to my Substack.


Writings and Social Media:


Medium Blog  Facebook Twitter LinkedIn Instagram MeWe  Pinterest Tumblr Ello SoundCloud





Check out my new book, The Art of Self-Education: How to Get a Quality Education for Personal and Professional Success Without Formal Schooling








Case No. 2021-001853DES

		From

		giselle p

		To

		Westhoff, Alex (CPC)

		Recipients

		alex.westhoff@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.





 





Dear Mr. Westhoff, 





I am writing to express my support for the designation of the SF Eagle as a historic landmark : Case No. 2021-001853DES. 


As a lifetime resident of the Bay Area and having lived in San Francisco my entire adult life, as well as being a member of the kink community, the Eagle has always stood as a monument not only to the current leather and kink scene, but to the institutional memory and significance of the broader socio-cultural impact of SOMA and the city. Indeed, the Eagle has been at the epicenter of fundraising, arts, protest, and social coherence that have had an impact far beyond the patrons of the establishment. 





Thank you for your time,





Giselle Paine








From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Mail from SF Heritage
Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:16:28 AM
Attachments: Mail from SF Heritage.pdf

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

From: "DCP, Reception (CPC)" <reception.dcp@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 8:54 AM

To: "Hillis, Rich (CPC)" <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>, "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"McMillen, Frances (CPC)" <frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org>, "Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)"
<jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>, "Vimr, Jonathan (CPC)" <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>, "Greving,
Justin (CPC)" <justin.greving@sfgov.org>, "Lentz, Kari (CPC)" <kari.lentz@sfgov.org>, "Wilborn,
Katherine (CPC)" <katherine.wilborn@sfgov.org>, "Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC)"
<linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>, "Smith, Maggie (CPC)" <maggie.smith@sfgov.org>,
"Bishop, Melanie (CPC)" <melanie.bishop@sfgov.org>, "Langlie, Michelle (CPC)"
<michelle.langlie@sfgov.org>, "Taylor, Michelle (CPC)" <michelle.taylor@sfgov.org>,
"Giacomucci, Monica (CPC)" <Monica.Giacomucci@sfgov.org>, Pilar LaValley
<pilar.lavalley@sfgov.org>, Richard Sucre <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>, "Ferguson, Shannon
(CPC)" <shannon.ferguson@sfgov.org>, Shelley Caltagirone <shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org>,
"Cisneros, Stephanie (CPC)" <stephanie.cisneros@sfgov.org>, "Parks, Susan (CPC)"
<susan.parks@sfgov.org>, "Westhoff, Alex (CPC)" <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>, "Vanderslice,
Allison (CPC)" <allison.vanderslice@sfgov.org>, Claudia Flores <claudia.flores@sfgov.org>
Subject: Mail from SF Heritage
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INTERIM PRESIDENT AND CEO 50™ ANNIVERSARY

Heritage’'s mission is to preserve and enhance
San Francisco's unique architectural and cultural identity.

Cover art courtesy of Eryn Kimura, commissioned by Heritage.

HERITAGE AT 50

SOIREE 2021
SATURDAY, JUNE 12TH

50™ ANNIVERSARY





Soirée will be a socially-distanced drive-in and
dinner at Fort Mason Center for Arts & Culture,

with a simultaneous online interactive livestream
of the festivities. Our event will feature a program
of greetings from Heritage friends and founders, a

mini-documentary of our past, present, and
future, and visits with people who keep San
Francisco’s unique architectural and cultural

identity vibrant.

Space for the in-person drive-in will be limited,
while a virtual event livestream will allow wider

participation with Heritage's community of

friends, fans, and followers.

In 1971, San Francisco Heritage was founded amid losses to
the city’s architectural and cultural identity. Over the past fifty
years, we have protected San Francisco in the face of rapid
change through advocacy, education, partnerships, and the
preservation of art, architecture, legacy businesses, and
community gathering places—the elements that define our
collective heritage and our pride as San Franciscans.

In 2021, Heritage’s mission and capacity are even more

relevant to the lives and livelihoods of San Franciscans, and we

continue to identify and protect the places and people that
make San Francisco unique.

B ————— - -

THE BoARD oF DIRECTORS OF SAN Francisco HERITAGE
CORDIALLY INVITES YOU TO

HERITAGE AT 50
SOIREE 2021

In celebration of Heritage’s 50th anniversary,
we are pleased to host our annual Soirée!

Saturday, June 12, 2021
7:30 in the evening until 9:30
Cocktail Hour 6:30 - 7:30 PM

Catered by McCalls

FORT MASON FLIX
Fort Mason Center for Arts & Culture
2 Marina Blvd, San Francisco
and Livestreamed online

For information about the many sponsorship benefits,
and to register by June 1, please visit:
www.sfheritage.org/soiree

For registration assistance, please contact Rachel Wolf
415.336.6969 - rwolf@sfheritage.org

Attire: Prepare for the marine layer and wear layers,
in celebratory San Francisco style!






From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letter Against installation of "temporary" lettering on Band Shell in Golden Gate Park Concourse
Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:14:51 AM

Jonas P Ionin

Director of Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org <http://www.sfplanning.org/>
San Francisco Property Information Map <https:/sfplanninggis.org/pim/>

On 5/18/21, 9:39 AM, "Harry S. Pariser" <editorial@savethemanatee.com> wrote:

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

For: Architectural Review Commission and Historical Preservation Commission

May 18, 2021
Inner Sunset, San Francisco

Dear Commission Members:

I would have written to you earlier regarding this misbegotten project, but I did not know about it until last week,
as there was zero community outreach (as with last year).

San Rafael resident and tax-exempt LED lighting firm owner Ben Davis is at it again!
Last year, Davis covertly planned to put a motto honoring Harvey Milk on the outside of the Band Shell.

Sensibly, you rejected that completely inappropriate proposal. Unfortunately, you made the wrong decision (twice
now) on that obnoxious, overpriced, toxic LED light Ferris wheel. In another four years, again at the last minute,
Commissioners will vote that it is now a "landmark" and plan to make it permanent. (That is, if it is profitable to
Skystar).

While there is definitely a relationship between Mr. Spreckels and Mr. Scott Key and racism, there is absolutely
no relationship whatsoever between the words "LIFT EVERY VOICE" and its composer and the Band Shell,
Francis Scott Key and Golden Gate Park.

While it is unclear to me why the historically-inappropriate lighting and sound system were permitted, but I am
concerned they may also be used to play the religious hymn in full, which would be even more inappropriate.

While the poet and hymn composer would not have liked having the religious sentiments expressed in that hymn
played in his midst, his statue is now missing. An art installation is to be put in surrounding him, a commission
cleverly ordered from an Oakland artist in order to give weight to this off-the-wall, totally inappropriate projection
and installation in a city park.

Mr. Davis now has wreaked his will elsewhere in the park and in our city. He represents the gentrifying and
corporatizing of our public space. There is no stopping him, even if anyone mismanaging this city wanted to try.


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Michelle.Taylor@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

Just as it set a horrible precedent when that misbegotten 1894 Exposition was permitted in this park (which
opened up a Pandora's Box of bad actions culminating in the Ferris wheel installation), so will approval of this
absolutely historically inappropriate addition result in opening the door to sound and light shows (think Golden Gate
History commemorations), ticketed nighttime concerts, and other horrors we can not imagine (but the clever Mr.
Davis will undoubtedly come up with).

We have to remember that temporary is the new permanent, and taxpayers are now subsidizing San Anselmo
resident Mr. Davis's "Bay Lights" (whose toxic LED lights are sold as "memorial lights" at $100 a pop!) to the tune
of hundreds of thousands per year. It was "temporary" when it was installed on the sly.

To reiterate, James Weldon Johnson does not have anything to do with either Golden Gate Park or the Band Shell.
The connections between Johnson and Golden Gate Park, those devised by Mr. Davis's slick and disingenuous
marketing team, are fatuous beyond belief.

The fact that, before he has even been approved for this installation, he is announcing it as a done deal assumes
that he is entitled to do whatever he wants in our city, and that alone is a reason to reject this absurd proposal.

If you do make the wrong decision and approve this, please change the motto's wording to "LIFT EVERY ELITE
VOICE". For that is how this system runs — blatant manipulation by well connected elites, Commissioners who
vote their class interests instead of for the public (and environmental good), manipulated surveys, and so on.

Ordinary working people, concerned environments, trained historians....all are ignored if not ridiculed, and
consensus is mined from a co-opted corporate media, indebted "nonprofits" and complicit unions (who do not
represent the interests of their members).

But I hope you will do the right thing and reject this!

Harry S. Pariser



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES OPENING OF NEW HUMMINGBIRD
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BEDS IN THE MISSION

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:13:51 AM

Attachments: 05.18.21 Hummingbird Valencia.pdf

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

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 7:58 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES OPENING
OF NEW HUMMINGBIRD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BEDS IN THE MISSION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 18, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.or

%%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES OPENING OF NEW
HUMMINGBIRD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BEDS IN THE
MISSION

Center adds 30 overnight beds and 20 daytime drop-in spaces for people experiencing
homelessness

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Rafael Mandelman today
announced the opening of a new psychiatric respite center in the Mission, providing a much-
needed place for people experiencing the combination of homelessness, mental health issues,
and substance use disorders to rest and get connected to care.

When fully operational, Hummingbird Valencia will add 30 beds for overnight clients at a
time, and up to 20 daytime drop-in clients, where people can stabilize, get connected to social
services, and be referred to longer-term treatment and recovery at an array of programs
throughout the City.

“Hummingbird Valencia is the result of our City and community partners coming together to
provide a solution to the mental health crisis we see on our streets,” said Mayor Breed. “We
need to pull together to make our City a more compassionate place where we take care of
those in need and get them on a path out of homelessness. I’'m grateful to Supervisor
Mandelman for his support in bringing this facility to his district.”
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LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 18, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

**x PRESS RELEASE ***
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
needed place for people experiencing the combination of homelessness, mental health issues, and
substance use disorders to rest and get connected to care.

When fully operational, Hummingbird Valencia will add 30 beds for overnight clients at a time,
and up to 20 daytime drop-in clients, where people can stabilize, get connected to social services,
and be referred to longer-term treatment and recovery at an array of programs throughout the
City.

“Hummingbird Valencia is the result of our City and community partners coming together to
provide a solution to the mental health crisis we see on our streets,” said Mayor Breed. “We need
to pull together to make our City a more compassionate place where we take care of those in
need and get them on a path out of homelessness. I’m grateful to Supervisor Mandelman for his
support in bringing this facility to his district.”

The new facility at 1156 Valencia Street is a collaboration between the San Francisco
Department of Public Health, PRC/Baker Places, The Salvation Army, and Tipping Point
Community. It opened today with a handful of day guests and will expand to a more limited 26
overnight beds by the end of June because of COVID-19 safety protocols.

“I’m proud that District 8 will be home to the first-ever community-based Hummingbird
Navigation Center,” said Supervisor Mandelman. “The Valencia location will provide shelter,
supportive services, and a path to stability and wellness for unhoused people struggling with
mental illness and substance use. These beds represent one more step toward meeting the City’s
acute need for exits from the streets, emergency rooms and jail for unhoused people with
behavioral health needs. The Hummingbird model is a proven concept that can make a real
difference in the crisis on our streets, and we need many more of them.”

The facility’s predecessor, Hummingbird Potrero, has provided similar services since 2017 on
the campus of Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. Over the past three years of

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

operations, Hummingbird Potrero successfully served more than 1,000 overnight clients and
hosted more than 12,000 day guest visits.

According to the latest Point in Time count in San Francisco from 2019, approximately 8,000
people experience homelessness on any given night. Of these individuals experiencing
homelessness, 42% self-report alcohol and drug abuse and 39% report psychiatric and emotional
conditions.

The facility supports the City’s efforts to address mental health and homelessness needs through
a coordinated network of behavioral health support services. Clients are referred to
Hummingbird Valencia from urgent care providers or by street teams including the Homeless
Outreach Team (HOT), the City’s new Street Crisis Response Team, the Department of Public
Health’s Street Medicine and Comprehensive Crisis Services.

“I’m thrilled to see Hummingbird’s innovative model of care expand to a new location,” said Dr.
Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “Hummingbird Valencia provides us with another linkage in a
network of programs that are bringing people experiencing a crisis on the streets to a safe place
indoors where they can stabilize before taking their next step toward wellness.”

In September 2019, Tipping Point Community announced that it would fund an expansion of
Hummingbird beds in San Francisco, including this new location at 1156 Valencia Street. The
Salvation Army is providing the property as part of its larger initiative to double its impact on
homelessness. Using this site for a behavioral health respite program will continue the mission of
The Salvation Army to serve vulnerable people in their communities.

PRC/Baker Places and the Department of Public Health will operate the program. PRC/Baker
Places currently operates the existing Hummingbird Place located on the Zuckerberg San
Francisco General Hospital campus.

Services at Hummingbird Valencia will include:
e Referral to primary medical and psychiatric community providers
e Coordination of services and discharge planning
e Connection to shelter and housing
e Transportation to medical and social services appointments
e Food, clothing, access to showers, and laundry facilities
e Individual and group counseling to engage in motivational interviewing
e One-on-one peer support
e Daily living skills training
e Referrals to vocational services for assessment of job skills, training, and employment
opportunities.

“PRC’s Humminghbird centers are an essential step in San Francisco’s spectrum of behavioral
health and substance use services. We provide a proven, cost-effective alternative to Emergency
Room care,” said Brett Andrews, CEO of PRC. “PRC is grateful to partner with the Mayor and

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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Supervisor Mandelman, the SF Department of Public Health, and our community partners
Tipping Point and the Salvation Army to expand the availability of these critical services to our
most vulnerable citizens at a time of such profound need.”

“The Salvation Army is thrilled to work with the Department of Public Health, PRC Baker
Places, and Tipping Point to open a Hummingbird site at our Mission neighborhood property,”
said Major Darren Norton, Divisional Commander for The Salvation Army, Golden State
Division. “In addition to the programming designed by the community agencies, we will be
offering optional emotional and spiritual support for clients of the program, as well as a direct
pathway into our residential drug and alcohol addiction treatment program at our Harbor Light
Center in the SOMA neighborhood. Together we can address the crisis of homelessness in our
city.”

“Low-barrier access to care and pathways to permanent housing are essential to reduce the
suffering on our streets,” said Andrea Evans, director of Tipping Point Community’s Chronic
Homelessness Initiative. “We are grateful that DPH and Mayor London Breed provided an
opportunity for philanthropy to play a role in making a second Hummingbird site a reality.”

San Francisco has several efforts underway to help people experiencing homelessness and
behavioral health issues to get off the streets, into housing, and connected with services. In April
2021, Mayor Breed announced the City is moving forward on leasing a location for a new Drug
Sobering Center. Last week, Mayor Breed announced a proposal to create a Street Wellness
Response Team to improve outcomes for people in need on San Francisco’s streets and advance
the City’s efforts to implement alternatives to police responses to non-violent calls. The Street
Wellness Response Team will provide an appropriate medical and social service response for
people who require immediate assistance but do not have emergent behavioral health care needs.
San Francisco’s Street Crisis Response Team, which launched in November 2020, will continue
operating to address the needs of people experiencing behavioral health crises.
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The new facility at 1156 Valencia Street is a collaboration between the San Francisco
Department of Public Health, PRC/Baker Places, The Salvation Army, and Tipping Point
Community. It opened today with a handful of day guests and will expand to a more limited
26 overnight beds by the end of June because of COVID-19 safety protocols.

“I’m proud that District 8 will be home to the first-ever community-based Hummingbird
Navigation Center,” said Supervisor Mandelman. “The Valencia location will provide shelter,
supportive services, and a path to stability and wellness for unhoused people struggling with
mental illness and substance use. These beds represent one more step toward meeting the
City’s acute need for exits from the streets, emergency rooms and jail for unhoused people
with behavioral health needs. The Hummingbird model is a proven concept that can make a
real difference in the crisis on our streets, and we need many more of them.”

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
homelessness, 42% self-report alcohol and drug abuse and 39% report psychiatric and
emotional conditions.

The facility supports the City’s efforts to address mental health and homelessness needs
through a coordinated network of behavioral health support services. Clients are referred to
Hummingbird Valencia from urgent care providers or by street teams including the Homeless
Outreach Team (HOT), the City’s new Street Crisis Response Team, the Department of Public
Health’s Street Medicine and Comprehensive Crisis Services.

“I’m thrilled to see Hummingbird’s innovative model of care expand to a new location,” said
Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “Hummingbird Valencia provides us with another
linkage in a network of programs that are bringing people experiencing a crisis on the streets
to a safe place indoors where they can stabilize before taking their next step toward wellness.”

In September 2019, Tipping Point Community announced that it would fund an expansion of
Hummingbird beds in San Francisco, including this new location at 1156 Valencia Street. The
Salvation Army is providing the property as part of its larger initiative to double its impact on
homelessness. Using this site for a behavioral health respite program will continue the mission
of The Salvation Army to serve vulnerable people in their communities.

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
o Referral to primary medical and psychiatric community providers
¢ Coordination of services and discharge planning
o Connection to shelter and housing
o Transportation to medical and social services appointments



Food, clothing, access to showers, and laundry facilities

e Individual and group counseling to engage in motivational interviewing

e One-on-one peer support

¢ Daily living skills training

o Referrals to vocational services for assessment of job skills, training, and employment
opportunities.

“PRC’s Hummingbird centers are an essential step in San Francisco’s spectrum of behavioral
health and substance use services. We provide a proven, cost-effective alternative to
Emergency Room care,” said Brett Andrews, CEO of PRC. “PRC is grateful to partner with
the Mayor and Supervisor Mandelman, the SF Department of Public Health, and our
community partners Tipping Point and the Salvation Army to expand the availability of these
critical services to our most vulnerable citizens at a time of such profound need.”

“The Salvation Army is thrilled to work with the Department of Public Health, PRC Baker
Places, and Tipping Point to open a Hummingbird site at our Mission neighborhood property,’
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

2

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
behavioral health issues to get off the streets, into housing, and connected with services. In
April 2021, Mayor Breed announced the City is moving forward on leasing a location for a
new Drug Sobering Center. Last week, Mayor Breed announced a proposal to create a Street
Wellness Response Team to improve outcomes for people in need on San Francisco’s streets
and advance the City’s efforts to implement alternatives to police responses to non-violent
calls. The Street Wellness Response Team will provide an appropriate medical and social
service response for people who require immediate assistance but do not have emergent
behavioral health care needs. San Francisco’s Street Crisis Response Team, which launched in
November 2020, will continue operating to address the needs of people experiencing
behavioral health crises.

HiHt



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES MID-MARKET VIBRANCY AND SAFETY PLAN
Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:12:08 AM

Attachments: 05.18.21 Mid-Market Strategy.pdf

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

Date: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 10:01 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES MID-
MARKET VIBRANCY AND SAFETY PLAN

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 18, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES MID-MARKET
VIBRANCY AND SAFETY PLAN

Increased police presence will combine with community ambassadors to cover every block of
the area that stretches from U.N. Plaza to Powell Street

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the Mid-Market Vibrancy
and Safety Plan, which is aimed at creating a safer and more welcoming environment in the
Mid-Market and Tenderloin area. The plan includes both a visible increase in police presence
to deter criminal activity and a community ambassador program to connect people in need
with services, and provide a welcoming presence for residents, workers, visitors, and
businesses. Community-based safety ambassadors will be stationed on every block of the area
from Powell Station (5th Street) to 8th Street on Market Street and adjacent areas just south of
Market Street, UN Plaza, and the Tenderloin blocks bordered by Larkin Street and Eddy
Street.

Both the law enforcement and community initiatives will work in tandem to address
challenges in the area and coordinate appropriate responses. Funding for this program will be
included in Mayor Breed’s upcoming budget proposal and will be supplemented by private
funding. However, key aspects of this plan will begin immediately using existing funding.
This program will also be supported by new State funding secured by UC Hastings.

“All of our residents and workers deserve to feel safe, and this area of the City continues to
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*xx PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES MID-MARKET
VIBRANCY AND SAFETY PLAN

Increased police presence will combine with community ambassadors to cover every block of the
area that stretches from U.N. Plaza to Powell Street

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the Mid-Market Vibrancy and
Safety Plan, which is aimed at creating a safer and more welcoming environment in the Mid-
Market and Tenderloin area. The plan includes both a visible increase in police presence to deter
criminal activity and a community ambassador program to connect people in need with services,
and provide a welcoming presence for residents, workers, visitors, and businesses. Community-
based safety ambassadors will be stationed on every block of the area from Powell Station (5th
Street) to 8th Street on Market Street and adjacent areas just south of Market Street, UN Plaza,
and the Tenderloin blocks bordered by Larkin Street and Eddy Street.

Both the law enforcement and community initiatives will work in tandem to address challenges
in the area and coordinate appropriate responses. Funding for this program will be included in
Mayor Breed’s upcoming budget proposal and will be supplemented by private funding.
However, key aspects of this plan will begin immediately using existing funding. This program
will also be supported by new State funding secured by UC Hastings.

“All of our residents and workers deserve to feel safe, and this area of the City continues to face
a number of challenges that need to be addressed,” said Mayor Breed. “With this plan, we’re
focusing on both addressing the illegal activity that is unacceptable and will not be allowed to
continue, while also building up our community presence so that this area is more welcoming,
friendly, and accessible to everyone who lives, works, and visits the area. This effort is really a
collaboration with support and guidance from the community, especially the many families with
children, workers, and senior communities that live and work here. This sustained, focused
approach will make a noticeable difference on the street as our City reopens and we continue to
move forward with our economic recovery.”

The plan for Mid-Market is to add additional City, private, and community resources so that law
enforcement personnel and community ambassadors are visible and active in the area. It will be
composed of two main efforts:

Community-Based Safety Ambassadors on Every Block

This initiative will support the Mid-Market/Tenderloin Community-Based Safety Program, a
collaboration between the Mid-Market Business Association, Tenderloin, Mid-Market and Civic
Center Community Benefit Districts (CBDs), Urban Alchemy, BART, SFMTA, San Francisco
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Public Works, and San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) to coordinate daily management of
cleaning and safety services in the targeted Mid-Market area. Every day, community
ambassadors will be stationed on each block of the area for 10-12 hours per day, to engage with
residents and visitors, support people in need and connect them with services, address safety
issues, and support the cleanliness of the area. These ambassadors, provided by Urban Alchemy,
will work in coordination with other City initiatives, including the Healthy Streets Operation
Center, the new Street Response Teams, and others to ensure the appropriate response for
different situations that may arise. With existing funding, the program will launch June 15, 2021.

Increased Public Safety Presence

Beginning immediately, the SFPD will also increase deployments in the area, including foot
patrols, motorcycle and bicycle deployments, and officers on horseback. They will focus on
providing a visible presence in the Mid-Market, UN Plaza, and Tenderloin areas. The strategy
will embody multiple objectives outlined in the SFPD Community Policing Strategic Plan — a
key element to emerge from the department’s Collaborative Reform Initiative to be a model of
21st century policing — enabling SFPD officers to collaboratively identify and develop
responses to issues that affect local residents, businesses and visitors; to connect individuals in
need to appropriate resources when services fall outside the scope of police work; and to increase
the visible presence of officers though positive, trust-building engagements with the residents,
businesses and visitors they’re sworn to safeguard. In alignment with Mayor Breed’s focus on
reimagining public safety, community policing will be the basis of the increased public safety
investment in this area, emphasizing community partnerships and proactive problem-solving
with mutual respect between the police and the people of San Francisco that they serve.

SFPD will operate this coordinated initiative from a UN Plaza location, where sister agencies
and community-based partners will meet daily for updates and information sharing.

“San Francisco residents and businesses made enormous sacrifices over the past year to make
our City’s COVID-19 response a nationally recognized success, and nowhere were those
sacrifices greater than in our Tenderloin and Mid-Market neighborhoods,” said Chief of Police
Bill Scott. “Mayor Breed’s Mid-Market Vibrancy and Safety Plan is another bold step that
makes good on our shared civic commitment to come back even stronger than before. For all of
us in the San Francisco Police Department, we’re grateful for this opportunity to showcase what
community policing and 21st century police reform look like. We’re thankful for our City and
community-based partnerships in this endeavor, and | look forward to saying hello to our Civic
Center, Mid-Market and Tenderloin neighbors while I’m on my own foot beat patrols there in the
coming weeks.”

The police presence and the initial launch of the Community Ambassadors effort will be funded
with existing City resources. To sustain the Community Ambassadors efforts for the longer-term,
the Mayor is proposing to provide $5 million in funding in her upcoming budget, while UC
Hastings has dedicated $3 million in State funding. Working together in partnership with the
Mayor’s administration, UC Hastings has sought and received the support of Governor Newsom,
who has included in his May Revision budget proposal an allocation of $3 million over three
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years to fund Urban Alchemy’s services contiguous to its campus. This financial investment over
a three-year period is a significant complement to this initiative.

The police deployment will begin Wednesday, May 19 and the Community Ambassadors will
begin June 15 and ramp up to full coverage over the summer.

David Faigman, Chancellor and Dean, UC Hastings

“UC Hastings Law lauds the leadership of Mayor London Breed whose commitment to public
safety is resolute and unwavering. We are confident that under the Mayor’s leadership, San
Francisco will muster the will and resources to restore the City to the prominence it enjoyed prior
to the pandemic. We look forward to continuing to work with the Mayor and her team. UC
Hastings commitment is not exclusively monetary; in order to support Urban Alchemy’s
operations, the school will provide it with legal services through its Social Enterprise &
Economic Empowerment Clinic, enhancing our students’ experiential learning and providing
valuable pro bono services to a worthy organization.”

Steve Gibson, Mid Market Business Association

“We are incredibly thankful for the Mayor’s commitment to invest in funding our proposal to
bring community based safe programs to the Mid-Market/Tenderloin neighborhood. We strongly
advocated for this program and know it will make a major difference. We know that neither
employees, nor tourists, nor residents will return unless our neighborhood is both perceived safe
and is actually safe. We look forward to leveraging the City’s investment with additional private
investment and fulfilling our vision of Mid-Market as a safe and clean business setting that
fosters a sense of community, inclusion, and contribution, by and for everyone.”

Lena Miller, Executive Director of Urban Alchemy

“Urban Alchemy has had the honor and privilege of providing safety and service in the
Tenderloin and Mid-Market areas for the last three years. We hire individuals with lived
experience, including long-term incarceration and homelessness, that provide them with a unique
insight and ability to engage with people from every walk of life. The Mayor’s support will
allow Urban Alchemy to provide additional work opportunities for individuals who have been
disconnected from the workforce, as respected assets and resources for the community, while at
the same time improving quality of life for all, including San Francisco’s most vulnerable
communities. We are grateful to our Mayor London Breed for having the courage and creativity
to invest in new approaches that put the community first and prioritizing job creation for those
most impacted by social and economic injustices.”

Simon Bertrang, Executive Director of the Tenderloin Community Benefit District
“The pandemic’s stifling impact on the positive life in our neighborhood has created a new,
unacceptable paradigm for our city. This is about giving our communities the calm and
confidence they need to recover. This is about our families getting back to school, our seniors
walking to the local park, about the businesses that sustain our neighborhoods. We have the
opportunity to deliver a new model for public safety in our city.”

Randy Shaw, Executive Director of the Tenderloin Housing Clinic
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“This funding is a game-changer. It returns the Tenderloin to the path toward revitalization it was
on pre-pandemic.”

Dan Jordan, Sixth Street Resident

“Since mid-2020, the group Urban Alchemy has been patrolling the first block of Sixth Street
and Market Street around that area. | have found that it is safer to walk through the area because
there are far less drug dealers and users out on the sidewalks and that these people stop those
people from hassling other people.”

Eric Brizee, Operations and Facilities Manager at the American Conservatory Theater’s
Strand Theater

“A.C.T. supports the Mayor’s efforts to deploy Urban Alchemy in the Mid Market corridor. In
2019, A.C.T.’s Strand Theater was the first site to contract independently with Urban Alchemy
for ambassadors to replace security guards at the theater. Their community-focused and non-
confrontational intervention methodologies have proven very effective at making the Strand a
more welcoming, safer site and will be critical in having audiences return to the Strand.”

Max Young, owner of Mr. Smith’s
“Knowing that the area around my business will become safer for my customers will motivate
me to start working on reopening. This makes a huge difference.”
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face a number of challenges that need to be addressed,” said Mayor Breed. “With this plan,
we’re focusing on both addressing the illegal activity that is unacceptable and will not be
allowed to continue, while also building up our community presence so that this area is more
welcoming, friendly, and accessible to everyone who lives, works, and visits the area. This
effort is really a collaboration with support and guidance from the community, especially the
many families with children, workers, and senior communities that live and work here. This
sustained, focused approach will make a noticeable difference on the street as our City reopens
and we continue to move forward with our economic recovery.”

The plan for Mid-Market is to add additional City, private, and community resources so that
law enforcement personnel and community ambassadors are visible and active in the area. It
will be composed of two main efforts:

Community-Based Safety Ambassadors on Every Block

This initiative will support the Mid-Market/Tenderloin Community-Based Safety Program, a
collaboration between the Mid-Market Business Association, Tenderloin, Mid-Market and
Civic Center Community Benefit Districts (CBDs), Urban Alchemy, BART, SFMTA, San
Francisco Public Works, and San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) to coordinate daily
management of cleaning and safety services in the targeted Mid-Market area. Every day,
community ambassadors will be stationed on each block of the area for 10-12 hours per day,
to engage with residents and visitors, support people in need and connect them with services,
address safety issues, and support the cleanliness of the area. These ambassadors, provided by
Urban Alchemy, will work in coordination with other City initiatives, including the Healthy
Streets Operation Center, the new Street Response Teams, and others to ensure the appropriate
response for different situations that may arise. With existing funding, the program will launch
June 15, 2021.

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
need to appropriate resources when services fall outside the scope of police work; and to
increase the visible presence of officers though positive, trust-building engagements with the
residents, businesses and visitors they’re sworn to safeguard. In alignment with Mayor Breed’s
focus on reimagining public safety, community policing will be the basis of the increased
public safety investment in this area, emphasizing community partnerships and proactive
problem-solving with mutual respect between the police and the people of San Francisco that
they serve.

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
makes good on our shared civic commitment to come back even stronger than before. For all



of us in the San Francisco Police Department, we’re grateful for this opportunity to showcase
what community policing and 21st century police reform look like. We’re thankful for our
City and community-based partnerships in this endeavor, and I look forward to saying hello to
our Civic Center, Mid-Market and Tenderloin neighbors while I’'m on my own foot beat
patrols there in the coming weeks.”

The police presence and the initial launch of the Community Ambassadors effort will be
funded with existing City resources. To sustain the Community Ambassadors efforts for the
longer-term, the Mayor is proposing to provide $5 million in funding in her upcoming budget,
while UC Hastings has dedicated $3 million in State funding. Working together in partnership
with the Mayor’s administration, UC Hastings has sought and received the support of
Governor Newsom, who has included in his May Revision budget proposal an allocation of $3
million over three years to fund Urban Alchemy’s services contiguous to its campus. This
financial investment over a three-year period is a significant complement to this initiative.

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
Francisco will muster the will and resources to restore the City to the prominence it enjoyed
prior to the pandemic. We look forward to continuing to work with the Mayor and her team.
UC Hastings commitment is not exclusively monetary; in order to support Urban Alchemy’s
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
bring community based safe programs to the Mid-Market/Tenderloin neighborhood. We
strongly advocated for this program and know it will make a major difference. We know that
neither employees, nor tourists, nor residents will return unless our neighborhood is both
perceived safe and is actually safe. We look forward to leveraging the City’s investment with
additional private investment and fulfilling our vision of Mid-Market as a safe and clean
business setting that fosters a sense of community, inclusion, and contribution, by and for
everyone.”

Lena Miller, Executive Director of Urban Alchemy

“Urban Alchemy has had the honor and privilege of providing safety and service in the
Tenderloin and Mid-Market areas for the last three years. We hire individuals with lived
experience, including long-term incarceration and homelessness, that provide them with a
unique insight and ability to engage with people from every walk of life. The Mayor’s support
will allow Urban Alchemy to provide additional work opportunities for individuals who have
been disconnected from the workforce, as respected assets and resources for the community,
while at the same time improving quality of life for all, including San Francisco’s most
vulnerable communities. We are grateful to our Mayor London Breed for having the courage
and creativity to invest in new approaches that put the community first and prioritizing job
creation for those most impacted by social and economic injustices.”



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
“This funding is a game-changer. It returns the Tenderloin to the path toward revitalization it
was on pre-pandemic.”

Dan Jordan, Sixth Street Resident

“Since mid-2020, the group Urban Alchemy has been patrolling the first block of Sixth Street
and Market Street around that area. I have found that it is safer to walk through the area
because there are far less drug dealers and users out on the sidewalks and that these people
stop those people from hassling other people.”

Eric Brizee, Operations and Facilities Manager at the American Conservatory Theater’s
Strand Theater

“A.C.T. supports the Mayor’s efforts to deploy Urban Alchemy in the Mid Market corridor. In
2019, A.C.T.’s Strand Theater was the first site to contract independently with Urban
Alchemy for ambassadors to replace security guards at the theater. Their community-focused
and non-confrontational intervention methodologies have proven very effective at making the
Strand a more welcoming, safer site and will be critical in having audiences return to the
Strand.”

Max Young, owner of Mr. Smith’s
“Knowing that the area around my business will become safer for my customers will motivate

me to start working on reopening. This makes a huge difference.”
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Enchill, Charles (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: No. 2020-01071COA - Certificate of Appropriateness for 400 California Street
Date: Friday, May 14, 2021 12:57:25 PM

Attachments: 400-California-HPC-2021-05-14.pdf

Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org

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

From: Woody LaBounty <wlabounty@sfheritage.org>

Sent: Friday, May 14, 2021 9:32 AM

To: dianematsuda <dianematsuda@hotmail.com>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>;
RSEJohns <RSEJohns@yahoo.com>; Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan
(CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; Nageswaran, Ruchira (CPC)
<ruchira.nageswaran@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: No. 2020-01071COA - Certificate of Appropriateness for 400 California Street

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Commissioners,

The attached letter sets forth the position of San Francisco Heritage on the proposed project at
400 California Street, Bliss & Faville’s historic Bank of California (1908).

Heritage has no objection to the proposed entry modifications to 400 California Street or the
removal of the non-historic interior vestibule. Of the two options presented, Heritage favors
“Option 2” specifying the additional removal and replacement of the non-historic side lites
and transom installed in 1967. Rather than anodized aluminum framing for the replacement
entryway, Heritage suggests that bronze would be more in keeping with the historic
significance and materials of the building.
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May 13, 2021

Historic Preservation Commission

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103

Re: No. 2020-01071COA - Certificate of Appropriateness for 400 California Street

Commissioners,

This letter sets forth the position of San Francisco Heritage on the proposed project at 400 California Street,
Bliss & Faville’s historic Bank of California (1908).

Heritage has no objection to the proposed entry modifications to 400 California Street or the removal of the
non-historic interior vestibule. Of the two options presented, Heritage favors “Option 2” specifying the
additional removal and replacement of the non-historic side lites and transom installed in 1967. Rather than
anodized aluminum framing for the replacement entryway, Heritage suggests that bronze would be more in
keeping with the historic significance and materials of the building.

Heritage has no objection to the proposed widening of the existing opening in the building’s west wall to
provide code-compliant egress to 430 California Street.

We believe strongly that this historic banking temple deserves a well-defined and robust interpretive
program, which includes public access. We understand the proposed project anticipates hosting monthly
public tours and a QR-code-accessed interpretive website. Heritage encourages a more detailed interpretive
plan that ensures a long-term commitment and strategy for public interaction.

For many years Union Bank hosted a museum-worthy history exhibit inside 400 California Street. We
request further exploration of how future onsite public engagement and access might be achieved. The area
around the proposed widened entryway to the lobby of 430 California Street may provide an opportunity to
allow public viewing of the historic interior from inside the structure, while the lobby of the adjacent 430
California could display interpretive materials.

Thank you,

/ - 2

Woody LaBounty
Interim President & CEO






Heritage has no objection to the proposed widening of the existing opening in the building’s
west wall to provide code-compliant egress to 430 California Street.

We believe strongly that this historic banking temple deserves a well-defined and robust
interpretive program, which includes public access. We understand the proposed project
anticipates hosting monthly public tours and a QR-code-accessed interpretive website.
Heritage encourages a more detailed interpretive plan that ensures a long-term commitment
and strategy for public interaction.

For many years Union Bank hosted a museum-worthy history exhibit inside 400 California
Street. We request further exploration of how future onsite public engagement and access
might be achieved. The area around the proposed widened entryway to the lobby of 430
California Street may provide an opportunity to allow public viewing of the historic interior
from inside the structure, while the lobby of the adjacent 430 California could display
interpretive materials.

Thank you,
Woody LaBounty

San Francisco Heritage
Cell: 415-244-8739
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Enchill, Charles (CPC)
Subject: FW: 400 California - Heritage letter of support
Date: Friday, May 14, 2021 11:17:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Heritage-P&P-response-400-California.pdf

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

From: "Enchill, Charles (CPC)" <charles.enchill@sfgov.org>

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 at 2:58 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: 400 California - Heritage letter of support

From: Carolyn Kiernat <kiernat@page-turnbull.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 13, 2021 6:57 AM

To: Enchill, Charles (CPC) <charles.enchill@sfgov.org>

Cc: Michael Eadie <meadie@kennedywilson.com>; Mary G. Murphy
<mgmurphy@gibsondunn.com>; Ghalandari, Sara <SGhalandari@gibsondunn.com>; Dan Baroni
<Dan_Baroni@gensler.com>; Dave Eadie <deadie@kennedywilson.com>; Elisa Skaggs
<skaggs@page-turnbull.com>

Subject: 400 California - Heritage letter of support

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Good morning, Charles.

Attached is a letter of support from Heritage for the proposed changes at 400 California.
We'll be touring a couple of their committee members through this site this Friday.

Please let us know if you have any questions.
Thanks,

Carolyn


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Charles.Enchill@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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E jg ZD) I T g GE 2007 FRANKLIN STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94109

May 11, 2021

Michael Eadie, Kennedy Wilson
c/o Carolyn Kiernat

Page & Turnbull

170 Maiden Lane, 5" Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108

Re: 400 California Street
Mr. Eadie,

Thank you for bringing the proposed project at 400 California Street, Bliss & Faville’s historic Bank

of California (1908), to San Francisco Heritage’s Projects and Policy Committee (P&P) on May 7, 2021. We
appreciate the team's recognition and respect for the historical significance and architecture of the banking
hall and and found your presentation clear and informative. The committee thoroughly reviewed and
discussed the proposed alterations listed in your request for a Certificate of Appropriateness scheduled to go
before the Historic Preservation Commission on May 19, 2021, and concluded the following:

Heritage has no objection to the proposed entry modifications to 400 California Street or the removal of the
non-historic interior vestibule. Of the two options presented, the committee favors “Option 2” specifying the
additional removal and replacement of the non-historic side lites and transom installed in 1967. Rather than
anodized aluminum framing for the replacement entryway, the committee suggests that bronze would be
more in keeping with the historic significance and materials of the building. Heritage has no objection to the
proposed widening of the existing opening in the building’s west wall to provide code-compliant egress to
430 California Street.

Heritage believes strongly that this historic banking temple deserves a well-defined and robust interpretive
program, which includes public access. The committee heard and appreciated your proposal of monthly
public tours and a QR-code-accessed interpretive website and is interested in the development of those
programs. But Heritage encourages a more detailed interpretive plan that ensures a long-term commitment
and strategy for public interaction. For many years Union Bank hosted a museum-worthy history exhibit
inside 400 California Street, and the committee requests more exploration of how future onsite public
engagement and access might be achieved. The area around the proposed widened entryway to the lobby
of 430 California Street may be an opportunity to allow public viewing of the historic interior from inside the
structure, while the lobby itself could augment the experience with the display of interpretive materials.

400 California Street merits listing on the National Register of Historic Places. Heritage would be pleased to
review and assist your team in the submission of a nomination to the State Historic Preservation Office.

Lastly, Heritage’s Projects and Policy Committee asks that you return to the committee to review any future
design proposals for tenant improvements.

Please let me know if you have any questions on these points and thank you again for allowing Heritage to
review your proposal.

Thank you,

/ -'f Q;,;/ »'i/’ J
J{Z/ﬁ 7 W
,/

Woody LaBounty
Interim President & CEO
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Carolyn Kiernat, AIA
Principal

Page & Turnbull is dedicated to doing our part to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in our communities. We remain available to
you via email, phone, and virtual meetings as we work remotely.

PAGE&TURNBULL

170 Maiden Lane, 5 Floor, San Francisco, California 94108
415.593.3218 (direct) | 415.362.5154 (main) | 415.931.2128 (cell)
kiernat@page-turnbull.com | www.page-turnbull.com
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From: Enchill, Charles (CPC)

To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC); CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: Re: 400 California - Heritage letter of support

Date: Friday, May 14, 2021 11:15:41 AM

Attachments: image001.png

Yes, the sponsor team requested.

Charles Enchill, Preservation Planner

Northeast Team / Current Planning Division

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7551 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our

services here.

From: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Sent: Friday, May 14, 2021 11:08 AM

To: Enchill, Charles (CPC) <charles.enchill@sfgov.org>; CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>

Subject: Re: 400 California - Heritage letter of support

Did they request it be forwarded?

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

Date: Friday, May 14, 2021 at 11:07 AM

To: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>

Subject: Re: 400 California - Heritage letter of support

My apologies,
Will let the sponsor know they can forward themselves or get a letter addressed to the HPC.

Best,


mailto:Charles.Enchill@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19
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
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail,
and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening
remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on
our services here.

From: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Sent: Friday, May 14, 2021 10:40 AM

To: Enchill, Charles (CPC) <charles.enchill@sfgov.org>; CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>

Subject: Re: 400 California - Heritage letter of support

Charles,
| am unclear as to why this is being forwarded to us? It is not addressed to the HPC.

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
We’'ll be touring a couple of their committee members through this site this Friday.

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

170 Maiden Lane, 5th Floor, San Francisco, California 94108
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
Subject: FW: 400 California Street

Date: Friday, May 14, 2021 10:40:54 AM
Attachments: B of Cal Itr to HPC.pdf

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

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 at 1:56 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: 400 California Street

From: Michael Corbett <mcorbett@Imi.net>

Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 8:54 PM

To: Enchill, Charles (CPC) <charles.enchill@sfgov.org>

Cc: Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>;
Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>;
jonathon.pearlman@sfgov.org <jonathon.pearlman@sfgov.org>; Nageswaran, Ruchira (CPC)
<ruchira.nageswaran@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Hepner, Lee (BOS)
<lee.hepner@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>

Subject: 400 California Street

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Dear Mr. Enchill,

Please see, attached, my comments on the proposed Certificate of
Appropriateness for 400 California Street, scheduled for the public
hearing of the Historic Preservation Commission on 19 May 2021. Please
let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

MICHAEL R. CORBETT

Architectural Historian 4 2161 Shattuck Avenue #203 & Berkeley, California 94704 & (510) 548-4123

12 May 2021

Historic Preservation Commission

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
San Francisco, California 94103

RE: Certificate of Appropriateness for 400 California Street (Record No.2020-
01071COA) — Bank of California

Dear Commissioners,

I am writing to comment on the proposal to convert the use of the Bank of California at 400
California Street from retail to office and to make alterations to the doorways into the space.

[ am writing as an architectural historian with long experience dealing with this building and
its architects. I am the author of Splendid Survivors (1979), the basis for the protection of this
building under Article 11, and of a book on the architects of the building, Bliss & Faville,
currently in progress.

I am writing because of the great importance of this building and my sense that the proposed
changes may represent a tipping point in the erosion of San Francisco’s cultural heritage.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE BUILDING

Since it was built, The Bank of California building has been recognized in countless
architectural publications, newspaper articles, architectural, urban, and travel guides. It was
recognized in 1968, by the City of San Francisco in its designation as Landmark No.3 after
Mission Dolores and Old St. Mary’s Church and what are now 285 additional designated
landmarks.

In language that was echoed in newspapers and the architectural press, when it opened the
Chronicle called it, “the equal of any bank building in the world.” Homer King, the president
of the bank said, “The directors thought it their duty to put up the best bank building in the
United States to show their absolute confidence and faith in San Francisco.”

This is one of the premier bank buildings in the North America, along with the Bank of
Montreal, the Girard Bank in Philadelphia, and the Bowery Savings Bank in New York. Its
model, the Knickerbocker Bank in New York has been demolished.

400 California





Certificate of Appropriateness for 400 California Street
12 May 2021
Page 2

HISTORY OF THE BUILDING

The Bank of California building was designed by Bliss & Faville in 1905, its site was cleared
for construction at the time of the earthquake of 18 April 1906, and it was completed in
September 1908. The period of more than two years it took to build the bank was largely due
to the special care taken in its finishes, furnishings, fine materials, and artwork. Among these
were marble counters and bronze tellers’ cages and mahogany trim around the perimeter of
the large central open space. Over the years the counters, tellers’ cages, and furniture were
modified to meet changing needs, but the central open space remained intact.

The most substantial alteration in the history of the building was in 1967 when the bank
expanded with a high rise tower abutting the existing building on its west side. At that time,
the marble and bronze features were removed. Probably at that time the downstairs vault
became a coin museum. The central space remained largely intact.

HISTORY OF THE BANK

The history of The Bank of California is associated at the highest level with the development
of San Francisco and the western United States. It is associated with the financing of the
Central Pacific Railroad across the continent, with the development of industry for mining,
agriculture, water, power, and manufacturing. Its early dominance among San Francisco
banks is associated with the silver mines in Nevada’s Comstock Lode.

The bank was organized in 1864 by William Ralston. The principal leaders of the bank in its
early years were Ralston, Darius Ogden Mills, and William Sharon, a trio commonly referred
to as the Bank Ring. Part ruthless capitalists and part generous philanthropists, in addition to
making huge fortunes for themselves and many others, these figures built the first theater in
San Francisco, started industries to create jobs, supported hospitals, orphanages, and other
charities, and built the Palace Hotel. Altogether they played an outsized role both in creating
a vision of what San Francisco could be and in the physical development of San Francisco.

The legacy of the Bank of California and its three best-known leaders survives in many ways,
but none of them more powerfully than in the Bank of California building. While the
building was built after Ralston, Mills, and Sharon were dead, the board of directors that built
it included several members who had worked with them and provided a direct link to the
early history of the bank and its role in San Francisco.

DESIGN AND DESCRIPTION
The design of the Bank of California building was inspired by the Temple of Jupiter Stator in

the Roman Forum with its Corinthian order. Jupiter was the king of the gods and Jupiter’s
temple was accordingly the most beautiful and important of buildings. Thus, the Bank of

400 California
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California building represented the place of the Bank of California in San Francisco at the top
of the hierarchy of banks and other financial institutions and at the center of power in San
Francisco. It was also inspired by McKim, Mead & White’s Knickerbocker Bank in New
York, drawing a comparison with a great banking institution in a city that San Francisco
emulated.

The materials used in building the Bank of California were mostly from California and were
of the highest quality. Coming from California, they represented the role of the Bank of
California in the development of the state.

EXPERIENCE OF THE BUILDING

A visitor to the building walks through the great Corinthian colonnade and enters through
the magnificent doorway on California Street directly into the vast banking room, 112
feet deep, 80 feet wide, and 50 feet high. Lit on three sides by immense clathried
windows set in a giant pilaster order without columns or visible trusses, the space itself is
the dominant feature of the design. The space intimidates the casual visitor and as it was
originally furnished, ennobles the account holder. It elevates the Bank of California and
creates a feeling of awe at the power and accomplishments of the Bank of California.

The Bank of California building interior today provides one of the most powerful
connections that exists to primary forces and figures — the Comstock Lode and the Bank
Ring — that shaped San Francisco in its formative decades.

DEGRADATION OF SAN FRANCISCO’S HERITAGE OF BANK
ARCHITECTURE

Since 1967 when the wood, marble, and bronze features of the interior of the Bank of
California were removed, similar features have been removed from most of San
Francisco’s great and distinctive heritage of banks. This is a tremendous loss of
irreplaceable materials, craftsmanship, atmosphere, and meaning. Some historic banks
have been demolished. Some have become facades for new buildings. Many have been
adapted for non-bank uses.

The Bank of Italy at the foot of Powell Street and the Savings Union Bank (Landmark
No.132) at the foot of Grant Avenue, both designed by the same architects who designed
the Bank of California, have both been converted to retail use. The power and beauty of
both spaces is greatly diminished. The former Crocker Bank interior at One Montgomery
has recently been approved for office use with intrusive structures that badly disrupt the
grand spaces.

The Bank of California building itself is further degraded by the prohibition of its future
use as a bank.

400 California
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Only a few years ago, tours of downtown San Francisco could enter numerous
magnificent bank interiors. If this project is approved, together with other recent changes,
that number will be reduced by a half dozen, a cumulative impact under CEQA.

THE INAPPROPRIATENESS OF A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS
Regarding the two elements of the requested Certificate of Appropriateness:

1) Change of use: Any change of use should require that the public entrance from
California Street be maintained. The entry sequence and the bank interior are
character defining features that should be preserved and must be addressed under
CEQA.

2) Alterations to entryways: The proposed changes appear reasonable in concept. The
proposed use of materials should be scrutinized and only the highest quality materials
approved.

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

San Francisco is a city of great banks, none more architecturally impressive or
historically important than the Bank of California building at 400 California Street. It is
among the handful of the most important historic buildings in San Francisco. Any actions
that may affect the physical fabric of the building or the less tangible conditions around
which it is seen and experienced deserve the most careful scrutiny by the Historic
Preservation Commission. If it results in limiting access through the main entrance on
California Street to the interior, the proposed change of use will seriously degrade the
public’s experience of this great landmark.

Along with rejecting the Certificate of Appropriateness for the proposed change of use,
the Historic Preservation Commission should initiate a study of San Francisco’s banks
and their interiors to determine strategies for preserving them. Like churches a generation
ago, banks represent a unique building type and require special efforts to understand and
preserve.

Sincerely,

Necheed P Coditt—

Michael R. Corbett

400 California






Michael Corbett

Michael R. Corbett

Architectural Historian

2161 Shattuck Avenue #203

Berkeley, California 94704

510-548-4123



From: Enchill, Charles (CPC)

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: Fw: 400 California Street

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 1:56:11 PM
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
Page 4

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

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); Hillis, Rich (CPC)
Subject: HPC Calendars for March 19, 2021

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 12:24:28 PM

Attachments: 20210519 hpc.pdf

20210519 hpc.docx

20210519 ARC.pdf

20210519 ARC.docx

HPC Advance - 20210519.xlsx
HPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for March 19, 2021.

Please be advised that the ARC will hold it’s first remote hearing this year at 11:30 am.

Cheers,

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
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REMOTE HEARING

via video and teleconferencing

Wednesday, May 19, 2021
12:30 p.m.
Regular Meeting

Commissioners:
Diane Matsuda, President
Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns,
Ruchira Nageswaran, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So

Commission Secretary:
Jonas P. lonin

Hearing Materials areavailable at:
Website: http://www.sfplanning.org
Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness, 14t Floor

Commission Hearing Broadasts:
Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning

Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:
commissions.seaetary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hoursin advance.
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Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement

The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original
inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As theindigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with theirtraditions, theRamaytush Ohlone
have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place,as wellas for all peopleswho reside in their traditional
territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by
acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.

Know Your Rights Underthe Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty isto serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councilsand other agencies of the
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City
operations are open to the people'sreview.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Frandsco Administrative Code) or to report aviolation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. GoodlettPlace, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415)
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications tothe Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the Califomia Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the publicare not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications thatmembers of the public submit to the Departmentregarding projects or hearings willbe made
available to all members of the publicfor inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similarinformation that a member of the public elects to submit
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other publicdocuments that members of the public may
inspect or copy.

Accessible Meeting Information
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday

through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible topersons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are availableat
the Grove, Van Nessand McAllisterentrances. A wheelchair lift is available atthe Polk Streetentrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are theF, J, K, L, M,N, T (exitat Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving theareaare the 5, 6,9, 19, 21,47,49,71,and 71L.For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415)701-4485or call311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the CivicCenter Underground Parking Garage (McAllisterand Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Groveand Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: Torequestassistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large printagendas or other accommodations,
please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org atleast 48 hoursin advance of the hearing.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreterfor a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589),or
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda parala Comision de Preservacion de Edifidosy Lugares Histdricos (Historic Preservation Commission). Sidesea asistir a la
audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato para asistenda auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favorllame por lo
menos 48 horas de anticipacién ala audiencia.

CHINESE: [i% s (74 2 B . Ml 7 sl 55l S5 D DR el 3806 (628) 6527589, A 7EHME R 7 BRAT 2 0 O 28
DAg (/N R

FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Parasatulong salengguwahe o
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyarilamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag
nang maaga (kung maaariay 48 oras) bago saaraw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: NoeecTka aHs Kommccum no 3alumte namsaTHUKOB MCTOpUK. 3a NOMOLLLIO epeBOAYMKa U 3a BCNIOMOraTerbHbIM
CITyXOBbIM Y CTPOWCTBOM Ha BpeMsi CryLuaHuni obpallanteck No Homepy (628) 652-7589. 3anpochl 40N KHbI 4enaTbCs MUHAMYM
3a484acoB A0 Ha4yana cnyllaHus.
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Remote Access to Information and Partidipation

In a ccordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders a ndsupplemental directions - aggressive
directives have been issued to slow down a nd reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.

On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing
and allow for remote public comment. The Commission stronglyencourages interested parties to
submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.seaetary@sfgov.org. Visit
the SFGovIVwebsite (www.sfgovtv.org) to streamthe live meetings or watch on a local television
station.

The publiccomment call-inline number is (415) 655-0001. You willalso need a n access code to join the
meeting. Theaccess codeforthis hearing is 187 681 7836. This information will also be providedon the
Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovIVbroadcast.

As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.

ROLL CALL:
President: Diane Matsuda
Commissioners: Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns,
Ruchira Nageswaran, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So

A. GENERAL PUBLICCOMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the
item is reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to
three minutes.

The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on
the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment. In response to public
comment, the commission is limited to:
(1) responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or
(2) requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or
(3) directing staff to place the item on a future agenda. (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))

B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS

1. Department Announcements
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C. COMMISSION MATTERS

2.

3.

President’s Report and Announcements

Consideration of Adoption:
e Draft Minutes for May 5, 2021

Adoption of Commission Minutes — Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to
vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the
Commission. Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the
minutes because they did not attend the meeting.

Commission Comments & Questions

e Disclosures.

e Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of
the Historic Preservation Commission.

D. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE

The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or
to hear the itemon this calendar.

E. REGULAR CALENDAR

5a.

5b.

2021-004010LBR (G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607)
PIER 45 SHED D-1 — Located on the northwest corner of Pier 45 on The Embarcadero
between Powell Street and Taylor Street, Assessor's Block 9900, Lot 045 (District 3).
Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission
approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. ABS Seafood, Inc. has served San
Francisco for 56 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-
serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends
that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is
within a C-2 (Community Business) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

2021-004011LBR (G. GUNTHER: (628)652-7607)
6040 GEARY BOULEVARD - Located on the north side of Geary Boulevard between 24th
Avenue and 25th Avenue, Assessor's Block 1456, Lot 022 (District 1). Consideration of
adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy
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5c.

5d.

Se.

Business Registry application. The Delicate Daisy — House of Flowers has served San
Francisco for 82 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-
serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends
that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is
within the Geary Boulevard NCD (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 40-X
Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

2021-004018LBR (M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440)
3067 SACRAMENTO STREET — Located on the south side of Sacramento Street between
Baker and Broderick Streets, Assessor's Block 1024, Lot 024 (District 2). Consideration of
adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy
Business Registry application. Sue Fisher King Co. has served San Francisco for 42 years.
The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that
are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a
tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to
encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a NC-1
(Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

2021-004015LBR (M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440)
25 RUSSIA AVENUE — Located on the northeast side of Russia Avenue between London and
Mission Streets, Assessor’s Block 6084, Lot 018A (District 11). Consideration of adoption of
a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business
Registry application. Italian American Social Club has served San Francisco for 86 years. The
Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are
valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool
for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage
their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the Excelsior Outer
Mission Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 65-X Height and Bulk
District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

2021-004017LBR (E. WU: (628) 652-7415)
618 BROADWAY — Located on the north side of Broadway Street between Stockton and
Columbus Avenue, Assessor’s Block 0146, Lot 004 (District 3). Consideration of adoption of
a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business
Registry application. Sam’s Burgers has served San Francisco for 55 years. The Legacy
Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are
valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool
for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage
their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the Broadway NCD
(Neighborhood Commercial District) and Scenic Street Special Sign District and 65-A-1
Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval
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5f.

ADJOURNMENT

2021-004016LBR (E. WU: (628) 652-7415)
1745 FOLSOM STREET - Located on the east side of Folsom Street between 13th Street and
14th Street, Assessor's Block 3529, Lot 050 (District 9). Consideration of adoption of a
resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business
Registry application. Rainbow Grocery Cooperative Inc. has served San Francisco for 46
years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving
businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the
Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is
within the PDR-1-G (PRODUCTION, DISTRIBUTION & REPAIR - 1 - GENERAL) Zoning District
and 58-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

2020-010710COA (C. ENCHILL): (628)652-7551)
400 CALIFORNIA STREET - Located on the north side of California Street, west of Sansome
Street; Lot 003 in Assessor's Block 0239 (District 4). Request for a Certificate of
Appropriateness to permit the replacement of the main entry doors, vestibule removal,
and widening of an existing interior ground floor connection to meet current accessibility
and egress requirements. The subject property is Landmark No. 3, Bank of California and is
located in a C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning District and 350-S Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

2021-001853DES (A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314)
SAN FRANCISCO EAGLE BAR, 396-398 12™ STREET - Located on the northwest corner of
12th Street at Harrison Street, Assessor’s Block 3522, Lot 014 (District 6). Consideration to
Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of the San Francisco Eagle
Bar (396-398 12th Street) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.2
of the Planning Code. The San Francisco Eagle Bar was initiated for Landmark designation
by Supervisor Haney and approved by the Board of Supervisors on February 2, 2021 (See
BoS File No. 201400). The San Francisco Eagle Bar is significant for its association with San
Francisco’s South of Market (SoMa) Leather and LGBTQ communities since 1981, and falls
within the SoMa LEATHER and LGBTQ Cultural District. The subject property is in a WMUG
(Western Mixed Use-General) Zoning District, and 55-X Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval
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Hearing Procedures
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on thefirstand third Wednesday, of most months. Thefull hearing

schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.

¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timerindicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised thatthe Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, orothersimilar sound-producing electronicdevices (67A. 1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers andsimilar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect,

engineer, expeditorand/or any otheradvisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, atthe discretion of the Chair;

Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the

hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, atthe discretion of the Chair;

Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened
by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or
continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

w

ow

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members
present constitutea quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

Hearing Materials
Eachitem on the Agenda may include the following documents:

e  Planning Department Case Executive Summary

e Planning DepartmentCase Report

o Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions
e  Public Correspondence

Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission priorto a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner. Correspondence may be emailed
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation
Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14t Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the
business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made partof the
official record.

Advance Submissions: Toallow Commissioners the opportunity to review materialin advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Departmentreception eight (8) days priorto the scheduled public hearing. Allsubmission packages
must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should includefifteen (15) copies.
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Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for
distribution.

Appeals
The following is asummary of appeal rights assodated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation
Commission hearing.

CaseType CaseSuffix AppealPeriod* Appeal Body
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals**
CEQA Determination ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals**

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.

For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisorsat (415) 554-5184 or
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.

Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a
Permit to Alter, (3) aLandmark or HistoricDistrict designation, you may be limited to raising only those issuesyou or someone
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation
Commission, at, or priorto, the public hearing.

Proposition F
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interestinaland use

matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the TreasureIsland
Development Authority Board of Directors, may makea campaign contribution to amemberof the Board of Supervisors, the
Mayor, the City Attomey, ora candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12months
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been
resolved. For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attemptto influence local legislative oradministrative action may be required by the
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Govemmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report
lobbying activity. For moreinformation about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contactthe San Francisco Ethics Commission at25
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...
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[bookmark: _Hlk36802641]Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor







Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.







[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

[bookmark: _Hlk879281] 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

[bookmark: _Hlk48037677]The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 187 681 7836. This information will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.



 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 

			Ruchira Nageswaran, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))



B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1.	Department Announcements	

	



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



2.	President’s Report and Announcements

	

3.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for May 5, 2021



Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they did not attend the meeting.



4.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



D.	CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



E.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



5a.	2021-004010LBR	(G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607)

PIER 45 SHED D-1 – Located on the northwest corner of Pier 45 on The Embarcadero between Powell Street and Taylor Street, Assessor’s Block 9900, Lot 045 (District 3). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. ABS Seafood, Inc. has served San Francisco for 56 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a C-2 (Community Business) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



5b.	2021-004011LBR	(G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607)

6040 GEARY BOULEVARD – Located on the north side of Geary Boulevard between 24th Avenue and 25th Avenue, Assessor’s Block 1456, Lot 022 (District 1). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. The Delicate Daisy – House of Flowers has served San Francisco for 82 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the  Geary Boulevard NCD (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



5c.	2021-004018LBR             	(M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440)

3067 SACRAMENTO STREET – Located on the south side of Sacramento Street between Baker and Broderick Streets, Assessor’s Block 1024, Lot 024 (District 2). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Sue Fisher King Co. has served San Francisco for 42 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a NC-1 (Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



5d.	2021-004015LBR	(M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440)

25 RUSSIA AVENUE – Located on the northeast side of Russia Avenue between London and Mission Streets, Assessor’s Block 6084, Lot 018A (District 11). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Italian American Social Club has served San Francisco for 86 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the Excelsior Outer Mission Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 65-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



5e.	2021-004017LBR	(E. WU: (628) 652-7415)

618 BROADWAY – Located on the north side of Broadway Street between Stockton and Columbus Avenue, Assessor’s Block 0146, Lot 004 (District 3). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Sam’s Burgers has served San Francisco for 55 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the Broadway NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) and Scenic Street Special Sign District and 65-A-1 Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



5f.	2021-004016LBR            	(E. WU: (628) 652-7415)

1745 FOLSOM STREET – Located on the east side of Folsom Street between 13th Street and 14th Street, Assessor’s Block 3529, Lot 050 (District 9). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Rainbow Grocery Cooperative Inc. has served San Francisco for 46 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the PDR-1-G (PRODUCTION, DISTRIBUTION & REPAIR - 1 - GENERAL) Zoning District and 58-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



6.	2020-010710COA	(C. ENCHILL): (628) 652-7551)

400 CALIFORNIA STREET – Located on the north side of California Street, west of Sansome Street; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 0239 (District 4). Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness to permit the replacement of the main entry doors, vestibule removal, and widening of an existing interior ground floor connection to meet current accessibility and egress requirements. The subject property is Landmark No. 3, Bank of California and is located in a C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning District and 350-S Height and Bulk District.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve



7.	2021-001853DES	(A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314)

SAN FRANCISCO EAGLE BAR, 396-398 12TH STREET – Located on the northwest corner of 12th Street at Harrison Street, Assessor’s Block 3522, Lot 014 (District 6). Consideration to Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of the San Francisco Eagle Bar (396-398 12th Street) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. The San Francisco Eagle Bar was initiated for Landmark designation by Supervisor Haney and approved by the Board of Supervisors on February 2, 2021 (See BoS File No. 201400). The San Francisco Eagle Bar is significant for its association with San Francisco’s South of Market (SoMa) Leather and LGBTQ communities since 1981, and falls within the SoMa LEATHER and LGBTQ Cultural District. The subject property is in a WMUG (Western Mixed Use-General) Zoning District, and 55-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



ADJOURNMENT




Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination 

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement

The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of
the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor
forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit
from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone
community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.

Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County
exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's
review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance,
contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at
sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at

www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San

Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All
written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the
public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names,
phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the
Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF
Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please
contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from
8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister
entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus
routes also serving the area are the 5,6, 9,19, 21,47, 49,71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and
Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other
accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to
help ensure availability.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please
refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comision de Planificacion. Sidesea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacion en Espaiiol o solicitar un aparato para asistencia
auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: #i#1 2 B graft i . WERE & LR 250 5 i s BRI Bt ff, 55 (628) 652-7589. i fE it & SRAT Z Al 1)
/D ag il /R HEEK .

FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari
lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: MoBecTka aHs KomMuccum no nnaqmpoBaHu 1. 3a NoMOLLbIO MepeBoAYMKa Y 33 BCNOMOraTernbHbIM ClyX0BbIM YCTP OACTBOM Ha
BpeMs CryLuaHnin oBpatuanTech no Homepy (628) 652-7589. 3an pochl A0 MKHbI AenaTbCst MUHUMYM 3a 48 YacOB 40 Havarna cnyLuaHus.
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http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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Architectural Review Committee of the Historic Preservation Commission Wednesday, May 19, 2021

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

ROLL CALL:

Members: Kate Black, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So
Ex-Officio: Diane Matsuda

A. COMMITTEE MATTERS

1.

Committee Comments & Questions

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

B. REGULAR

2.

ADJOURNMENT

2020-005897PTA (J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)
233 GEARY STREET - Located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Geary and
Stockton streets, Block 0314, Lot 001 (District 3). Review and Comment by the
Architectural Review Committee regarding the proposal to convert the I. Magnin building
to a mix of retail, office, and 21 residential units, and to complete associated exterior
alterations such as ground floor modifications, expansion of the existing window
openings, and removal of a portion of the blank, western elevation. The subject property is
located in the C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District and 65-X Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment

2021-004293C0OA (M.TAYLOR: (628) 652-7352)
55 HAGIWARA TEA GARDEN DRIVE - Located between John F. Kennedy Drive, Hagiwara
Tea Garden Drive, Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, and Music Concourse Drive, Lot 001 in
Assessor’s Block 1700 (District 1, District 5). Review and Comment by the Architectural
Review Committee regarding the proposal to install illuminated letters on the frieze of the
Spreckels Temple of Music. The temporary installation will be removed after two years. The
subject property is located in the P (Public) Zoning District and OS Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment
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https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2020-005897PTA_ARC_051921.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2021-004293COA_ARC_051921.pdf
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Commissioners:

Kate Black, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So 





Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin







Hearing Materials are available at:

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

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



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

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

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



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE



ROLL CALL:		Members:		Kate Black, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So

			Ex-Officio:		Diane Matsuda

[bookmark: _Hlk71116739]	

A.	COMMITTEE MATTERS



1.	Committee Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



B.	REGULAR



2.	2020-005897PTA	(J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)

233 GEARY STREET – Located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Geary and Stockton streets, Block 0314, Lot 001 (District 3). Review and Comment by the Architectural Review Committee regarding the proposal to convert the I. Magnin building to a mix of retail, office, and 21 residential units, and to complete associated exterior alterations such as ground floor modifications, expansion of the existing window openings, and removal of a portion of the blank, western elevation. The subject property is located in the C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District and 65-X Height and Bulk District.   

Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment



3.	2021-004293COA	(M. TAYLOR: (628) 652-7352)

55 HAGIWARA TEA GARDEN DRIVE – Located between John F. Kennedy Drive, Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive, Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, and Music Concourse Drive, Lot 001 in Assessor’s Block 1700 (District 1, District 5). Review and Comment by the Architectural Review Committee regarding the proposal to install illuminated letters on the frieze of the Spreckels Temple of Music. The temporary installation will be removed after two years. The subject property is located in the P (Public) Zoning District and OS Height and Bulk District.   

Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment



ADJOURNMENT
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Advance

				To:		Historic Preservation Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				May 19, 2021 - ARC						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2020-005897PTA		233 Geary Street										Vimr

						Alterations throughout the exterior

				Spreckels Bandshell 										Taylor

						Signage

				May 19, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Applications

		2021-001853DES		396-398 12th Street										Westhoff

						Historic Landmark Destination (DES) for the San Francisco Eagle Bar.

		2020-010710COA		400 California Street										Enchill

						CoA - Landmark #3 (Bank of California) 

				June 2, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2020-009076COA		900 Innes Ave				fr: 4/7; 5/5						Westhoff

						rehabilitation of The Shipwright’s Cottage 

				Housing Element										Caltagirone

						Informational

				June 16, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2015-001033COA-02		940 Battery Street 				CONSENT						Salgado

						Extending the expiration date of previously approved HPC Motion No. M-0345

		2021-001791PCA		Review of Large Residence Developments										Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Applications

		2021-001102PTA		660 Market Street										Vimr

						rooftop cleaning equipment and extend the height of the structure’s rear parapet

		2020-005897PTA		233 Geary Street										Vimr

						exterior alterations at the ground floor, western wall, rooftop, and windows

		2018-013597ENV		733 Kearny Street										Taylor

						HPC Preservation Alternatives

		2020-009640OTH		Racial & Social Equity Plan										Flores

						Informational Update

				July 7, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				July 21, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2018-013597ENV		733 Kearny Street 										Taylor

						HPC Draft EIR 

		2019-021884ENV		SFMTA: 2500 Mariposa Street 										Lynch

						Potrero Yard Muni Bus Maintenance Facility - DEIR

				August 4, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2021-002831DES		1 Montgomery Bank Building										LaValley

						Landmark designation initiated by BOS

		2021-002874DES		447 Battery Street										LaValley

						Landmark designation initiated by BOS

				August 18, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2018-013597ENV		733 Kearny Street										Taylor

						HPC  Draft EIR
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Action Items

		HPC Action Items								 

		Date		Item						CONT.		NOTES		HEARING DATE

		3/7/12		Priorities on Landmark Designation Work Program										TBD

						Pending completion of Preserve America Grant Tasks

		3/21/12		Discussion of incentives and preservation tools for historic cultural uses/resources										TBD

						Follow-up based on 12/5/12 Hearing

		6/20/12		HPC Review and Comment of CEQA Ducuments										TBD

						Pending request with Environmental Planning

		12/19/12		Condition of Mothers Building										TBD

						With RecPark and Arts Commission Representatives

		2/6/13		Update on monastery materials to return back to Santa Maria de 'Ovila Monastery in Spain										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status update on Settlement Agreement re: mitigation monitoring and enforcement										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger & Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger

		3/6/13		Update on Preservation Website										5/15/13

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		5/15/13		2nd Update on Preservation Website										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		2/5/14		Discuss HPC promotion and involvement in 20% Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credit Program										TBD

						Request by Vice President Wolfram, with representatives from OHP

		2/19/14		Update on Draft Preservation Element										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda, President Hasz 

		2/19/14		Discuss local application of Secretary of the Interior's Standards										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Pearlman

		2/19/14		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda
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To:		Staff

From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:		Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1185

NEXT MOTION No:  0437

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

   May 5, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0436

		2021-000965COA

		1201 Ortega Street

		Cisneros

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1184

		2021-001721DES

		“The Making of a Fresco Showing the Building of a City,” 800 Chestnut Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended.

		+7 -0







   April 21, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		R-1183

		2021-002933PCA

		Simplify Restrictions on Small Business [Board File No. 210285] –

		Nickolopoulos

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with staff modifications.

		+7 -0







   April 7, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 3, 2021

		Lynch

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0434

		2020-010391PTA

		1 Kearny Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1175

		2021-005280LBR

		298 Pacific Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1176

		2021-002581LBR

		358 Noe Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1177

		2021-002571LBR

		550 Bayshore Boulevard

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1178

		2021-002569LBR

		650 04th Street

		Balba

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1179

		2021-002579LBR

		1735 Mission Street

		Balba

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1180

		2021-002570LBR

		937 Cole Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1181

		2021-002891LBR

		4115 19th Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0435

		2020-004724COA

		1045 Sansome Street

		Langlie

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment, Continued to May 5, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0263U

		Residence Parks Historic Context Statement

		McMillen

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		R-1182

		2021-000795DES

		Ingleside Terraces Sundial and Sundial Park

		McMillen

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2016-013156SRV

		Citywide Cultural Resources Survey

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		

		2015-007181OTH

		Preservation Reporting and Landmarks Update

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented  

		







   March 3, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 17, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-004724COA

		1045 Sansome Street

		Langlie

		Continued to April 7, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-0432

		2021-000208COA

		1800 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Matsuda absent) 



		R-1171

		2021-001263LBR

		848 Washington Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1172

		2021-001264LBR  

		350 Hayes Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1173

		2021-001265LBR

		888 Brannan Street, Suite 100

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1174

		2021-001255LBR

		4494 Mission Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0433

		2019-022126COA-04

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved as revised by Staff and amended to include:

1. Eight weeks for Rec/Park to provide materials re: the generator and fencing; and 

2. An update hearing in 12 months.

		+7 -0







   February 17, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 3, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1170

		2020-011305DES

		Lyon-Martin House, 649-651 Duncan Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval, striking any reference to the adjacent vacant parcel.

		+6 -1 (Hyland against)



		

		2019-022126COA-04

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		After hearing and closing public comment, Continued to March 3, 2021

		+6 -0 (Johns absent) 







   February 3, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 20, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1167

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2020-2021 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1168

		2021-000331LBR

		250 Napoleon Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1169

		2020-000330LBR

		5166 3rd Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022850ENV

		1101-1123 Sutter Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   January 20, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 6, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		

		



		R-1165

		2020-009613DES

		2778 24th Street (Casa Sanchez Building)  

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Initiation

		+7 -0



		R-1166

		2020-009614DES

		2868 Mission Street (Mission Cultural Center)

		 Corrette

		Adopted a Recommendation for Initiation

		+7 -0







  January 6, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1160

		2020-011535LBR

		415 Geary Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1161

		2020-011546LBR

		3003 03rd Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1162

		2020-011549LBR

		1376 Haight Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1163

		2020-011536LBR

		1792 Haight Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1164

		2020-011534LBR

		2720 24th Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CONTRIBUTIONS TO SAN FRANCISCO'S
‘SUMMER TOGETHER' INITIATIVE

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 9:46:42 AM

Attachments: 05.13.21 Summer Together Sponsors.pdf

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

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 at 9:30 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES
CONTRIBUTIONS TO SAN FRANCISCO’S ‘SUMMER TOGETHER’ INITIATIVE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, May 13, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.or

%%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CONTRIBUTIONS
TO SAN FRANCISCO’S ‘SUMMER TOGETHER’ INITIATIVE

New donations for Summer Together from Stripe, Instacart, Google, UNIQLO, LinkedIn, and

Facebook will support San Francisco’s efforts to offer free summer programing for public
school students

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and community

organization TogetherSF today announced significant new sponsorship from several
businesses for the Summer Together Initiative. Starting next month, Summer Together will
offer a combination of free in-person and virtual learning experiences for public school
students this summer.

Summer Together is funded through a public-private partnership between the City of

San Francisco and philanthropic support. Today, Mayor Breed announced the City has secured
additional business support for Summer Together from Stripe, Instacart, Google, UNIQLO,
LinkedIn, and Facebook. These new contributions are in addition to the $25 million
philanthropic gift from Crankstart, which supported the launch of the initiative. Other
businesses that are interested in supporting Summer Together can contribute both monetary
and non-monetary support, like food or physical space for learning programs via the Give2SF
COVID-19 Response and Recovery Fund.

“I’m so excited that this summer we will be able to provide San Francisco students with in-
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
Facebook will support San Francisco’s efforts to offer free summer programing for public school
students

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and community organization TogetherSF today
announced significant new sponsorship from several businesses for the Summer Together
Initiative. Starting next month, Summer Together will offer a combination of free in-person and
virtual learning experiences for public school students this summer.

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
philanthropic gift from Crankstart, which supported the launch of the initiative. Other businesses
that are interested in supporting Summer Together can contribute both monetary and non-
monetary support, like food or physical space for learning programs via the Give2SF COVID-19
Response and Recovery Fund.

“I’m so excited that this summer we will be able to provide San Francisco students with in-
person and virtual opportunities to learn,” said Mayor Breed. “As we’ve been saying from the
start of this pandemic, it takes a village to take care of our young people. Thanks to the generous
contributions of these new sponsors, our Summer Together initiative is even stronger and will
have more resources to ensure San Francisco kids have a great summer of learning and fun.”

Summer Together aims to help San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) students
impacted by learning loss due to the COVID-19 pandemic engage in meaningful, fun, and
academically integrated programming and experiences. The Initiative aims to

serve SFUSD students, with a focus on supporting the City’s highest need students and families.
Summer Together is coalition of San Francisco community organizations, nonprofits, businesses,
SFUSD, and City departments. TogetherSF, a community organization, is providing
administrative and operational support for the Summer Together Initiative.

“It’s remarkable seeing the local business community step up to make this a great summer for
San Francisco’s students,” said Griffin Gaffney, the co-founder of TogetherSF, a volunteer
network that helped with rallying the corporate donations to support the launch of Summer

Together. “This is an all hands on deck moment for our city, and so we’re proud to see these
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corporate partners come forward to help. But we can’t stop here — and we hope to see
volunteers from across the city come out and donate their time to help ensure the Summer
Together initiative is a huge success for students and for San Francisco.”

New Support for Summer Together

San Francisco’s business community has come together to provide office space, transportation,
food, and funding so that kids can safely return to in-person learning and have the resources they
need to be successful. Corporate donors have been essential to making this happen. The City is
receiving office space and 25 staffed buses from Google, groceries for 1,000 families from
Instacart, 25,000 masks from UNIQLO, office space from Stripe, and additional financial
support from Facebook and LinkedIn.

“We’re excited to offer up our Community Space and provide up to 25 shuttle buses and drivers
to get San Francisco kids to their YMCA summer programs,” said Adrian Schurr, Google.org’s
Bay Area Giving Lead. “Students deserve every opportunity, and we are proud to be part of the
broad group that has come together to create a summer of in-person learning opportunities after
over a year of remote learning.”

“At the core of our mission is access. COVID-19 has widened systemic inequalities and we
believe we’re uniquely positioned to remove barriers to food and support communities as
families and kids rebound from a very hard year,” said Dani Dudeck, Chief Communications
Officer at Instacart. “We’re happy to join forces with our peers and local partners like Together
SF to support our neighbors, and the Summer Together initiative - providing groceries to 1,000
youth and their families over the summer.”

“UNIQLO is thankful for this opportunity to support the Summer Together initiative with the
donation of 25,000 of our AIRism masks,” said Daisuke Tsukagoshi, CEO of UNIQLO USA,
LLC. “We are happy to help the community and contribute to help everyone spend more time
together safely, be it enjoying outdoor play or indoor learning.”

Summer Together Initiative

After a year of not being in the classroom, San Francisco’s public school students have fallen
behind academically and emotionally. Mental health experts report that children of all ages are
experiencing severe social, emotional, and mental health issues such as depression and anxiety.
These learning and wellness issues are significantly magnified in African American, Latino,
Pacific Islander, low-income, and English Language Learner children and families.

This year, the City and School District’s summer offerings will focus on continuity of learning
and will expand beyond traditional programs to include curriculum to combat learning loss,
ensure credit recovery for high school students, and provide comprehensive support for families.
Each individual family will be offered a range of supports for their children from free summer
reading books easily picked up at any San Francisco Public Library to a full day of in-person
learning at school sites, Community Hubs, or Recreation and Park Camps.
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Summer Together will offer free learning opportunities that also includes, short-duration, support
opportunities such as mental health and wellness counseling, on an as-needed basis.

e Academic In-Person Learning. Programming will be hosted at Public School
buildings, Recreation and Park Centers, nonprofit spaces and private commercial spaces,
facilitated by San Francisco’s Department of Children, Youth and Their Families
(DCYF) community-based organizations and SFUSD’s summer school program. (17,720
slots)

e In-Person Summer Camp. Scholarships will be provided for students to attend summer
camp with San Francisco’s Recreation and Park Department, private camp providers and
DCYF funded community based organizations. (8,300 slots)

o Virtual Learning Opportunities. Online programming opportunities from public and
private organizations. (2,000 students)

e Independent learning. All SFUSD students will be eligible for up to ten summer reading
books, to be distributed by the San Francisco Public Library. (50,000 students)

“After this pandemic, San Francisco will be known as the City that said we will do whatever it
takes to support our children and youth - particularly from our most marginalized communities -
to get the support and services they need,” said Maria Su, DCYF Director. “We have
demonstrated this and will continue to deepen our commitment to build an infrastructure of
multi-sector partnerships and collaborations to ensure the success of our City’s children, youth
and families.”

DCYF has brought together partners from across the City to offer a diverse array of learning
options that will be available to San Francisco public school students. Families are encouraged to
visit https://www.dcyf.org/summertogether page for up-to-date enrollment and

resource information from participating summer camp and program partners. Registered students
will begin programming starting on June 14, 2021.

To find out more information about Summer Together volunteer opportunities, go
to summertogether.org.

HiH
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person and virtual opportunities to learn,” said Mayor Breed. “As we’ve been saying from the
start of this pandemic, it takes a village to take care of our young people. Thanks to the
generous contributions of these new sponsors, our Summer Together initiative is even stronger
and will have more resources to ensure San Francisco kids have a great summer of learning
and fun.”

Summer Together aims to help San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) students
impacted by learning loss due to the COVID-19 pandemic engage in meaningful, fun, and
academically integrated programming and experiences. The Initiative aims to

serve SFUSD students, with a focus on supporting the City’s highest need students and
families. Summer Together is coalition of San Francisco community organizations, nonprofits,
businesses, SFUSD, and City departments. TogetherSF, a community organization, is
providing administrative and operational support for the Summer Together Initiative.

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
San Francisco’s business community has come together to provide office space,

transportation, food, and funding so that kids can safely return to in-person learning and have
the resources they need to be successful. Corporate donors have been essential to making this
happen. The City is receiving office space and 25 staffed buses from Google, groceries for
1,000 families from Instacart, 25,000 masks from UNIQLO, office space from Stripe, and
additional financial support from Facebook and LinkedIn.

“We’re excited to offer up our Community Space and provide up to 25 shuttle buses and
drivers to get San Francisco kids to their YMCA summer programs,” said Adrian Schurr,
Google.org’s Bay Area Giving Lead. “Students deserve every opportunity, and we are proud
to be part of the broad group that has come together to create a summer of in-person learning
opportunities after over a year of remote learning.”

“At the core of our mission is access. COVID-19 has widened systemic inequalities and we
believe we’re uniquely positioned to remove barriers to food and support communities as
families and kids rebound from a very hard year,” said Dani Dudeck, Chief Communications
Officer at Instacart. “We’re happy to join forces with our peers and local partners like
Together SF to support our neighbors, and the Summer Together initiative - providing
groceries to 1,000 youth and their families over the summer.”

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
experiencing severe social, emotional, and mental health issues such as depression and
anxiety. These learning and wellness issues are significantly magnified in African American,
Latino, Pacific Islander, low-income, and English Language Learner children and families.

This year, the City and School District’s summer offerings will focus on continuity of learning
and will expand beyond traditional programs to include curriculum to combat learning loss,
ensure credit recovery for high school students, and provide comprehensive support for
families. Each individual family will be offered a range of supports for their children from free
summer reading books easily picked up at any San Francisco Public Library to a full day of in-
person learning at school sites, Community Hubs, or Recreation and Park Camps.

Summer Together will offer free learning opportunities that also includes, short-duration,
support opportunities such as mental health and wellness counseling, on an as-needed basis.

¢ Academic In-Person Learning. Programming will be hosted at Public School
buildings, Recreation and Park Centers, nonprofit spaces and private commercial
spaces, facilitated by San Francisco’s Department of Children, Youth and Their
Families (DCYF) community-based organizations and SFUSD’s summer school
program. (17,720 slots)

e In-Person Summer Camp. Scholarships will be provided for students to attend
summer camp with San Francisco’s Recreation and Park Department, private camp
providers and DCYF funded community based organizations. (8,300 slots)

¢ Virtual Learning Opportunities. Online programming opportunities from public and
private organizations. (2,000 students)

o Independent learning. All SFUSD students will be eligible for up to ten summer
reading books, to be distributed by the San Francisco Public Library. (50,000 students)

“After this pandemic, San Francisco will be known as the City that said we will do whatever it
takes to support our children and youth - particularly from our most marginalized communities
- to get the support and services they need,” said Maria Su, DCYF Director. “We have
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
options that will be available to San Francisco public school students. Families are encouraged
to visit https://www.dcyf.org/summertogether page for up-to-date enrollment and

resource information from participating summer camp and program partners. Registered
students will begin programming starting on June 14, 2021.

To find out more information about Summer Together volunteer opportunities, go
to summertogether.org.
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 at 8:04 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: **PRESS RELEASE** PEOPLE 12 AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO
RECEIVE THE COVID-19 VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, May 13, 2021
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org

**PRESS RELEASE**
PEOPLE 12 AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO
RECEIVE THE COVID-19 VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO

San Francisco to continue equity strategy to ensure residents of hardest-hit
neighborhoodsreceive equitable access to vaccine

San Francisco, CA — Starting today, May 13, in accordance with state and federal
guidance, individuals age 12 and over in San Francisco are now eligible to receive a Pfizer
COVID-19 vaccine. The Pfizer vaccine, the only vaccine approved for this age group, is very
effective in teenagers with studies showing that it prevents up to 100% of COVID-19
infections and produces protective antibodies.

“This expanded eligibility is important progress in our fight against COVID-19, one that is
especially encouraging as we look to fully open all of our schools for full-time, in-person
learning” said Mayor London Breed. “By creating a network of vaccination sites in our city,
we’ve focused on making the vaccines easy to access by meeting people where they are. We
will continue that effort with strategies specifically targeting our youth and their families. As
we bring this focus to younger people, we encourage everyone to take this opportunity to
make sure all eligible family members are getting vaccinated. When our families are healthy
and strong, our city is too.”

On April 13, San Francisco expanded eligibility to people 16 and older. More than 75% of
people who are eligible in San Francisco have received at least one dose of the vaccine and
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

San Francisco to continue equity strategy to ensure residents of hardest-hit neighborhoods
receive equitable access to vaccine

San Francisco, CA — Starting today, May 13, in accordance with state and federal guidance,
individuals age 12 and over in San Francisco are now eligible to receive a Pfizer COVID-19
vaccine. The Pfizer vaccine, the only vaccine approved for this age group, is very effective in
teenagers with studies showing that it prevents up to 100% of COVID-19 infections and
produces protective antibodies.

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
will continue that effort with strategies specifically targeting our youth and their families. As we
bring this focus to younger people, we encourage everyone to take this opportunity to make sure
all eligible family members are getting vaccinated. When our families are healthy and strong,
our city is too.”

On April 13, San Francisco expanded eligibility to people 16 and older. More than 75% of
people who are eligible in San Francisco have received at least one dose of the vaccine and the
City is currently vaccinating roughly 8,500 residents per day. On May 10, the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) authorized the emergency use of the Pfizer vaccine for people between
the ages of 12 and 15. Following the additional review by the Advisory Committee on
Immunization Practices and the Western States Scientific Safety Review Workgroup, which
concluded on May 12, the City will begin administering the vaccine to this age group on
Thursday, May 13. Pfizer is the only vaccine approved for individuals younger than 18.

There are approximately 25,000 children ages 12 t015 in San Francisco. The City has
developed a robust distribution infrastructure that includes high-volume vaccination sites,
neighborhood sites, community clinics, pharmacies, and mobile vaccination teams to make
receiving the vaccine as convenient,comfortable and low-barrier for as many people as possible,
particularly in those neighborhoods disproportionately affected by the pandemic. With this
eligibility expansion, SFDPH/COVID Command is collaborating with San Francisco Unified
School District (SFUSD) to bring vaccines to select school sites located in communities that
have been hard hit by COVID-19. Those newly eligible and their families should visit
SF.gov/getvaccinated to learn about options for receiving the vaccine and to find links to
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schedule appointments at different vaccination sites administering the Pfizer vaccine.

“The fact that we are at a point in this pandemic where we can offer vaccines to youth ages 12 to
15 is a truly remarkable sign of progress,” says Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of the Department of
Public Health. “The more people we vaccinate, the more we can get back to the things we love
without the fear of contracting COVID-19 and spreading it to a friend or loved one. As we have
done with each eligibility expansion, we will continue to work alongside our partners to ensure
equitable access to vaccines for communities that have been most impacted by COVID-109. |
want to encourage everyone to get vaccinated as soon as possible so that we can all look forward
to a great summer.”

Generally, parent or legal guardian consent is required for COVID-19 vaccinations of minors,
unless they meet the criteria for emancipation or self-sufficiency as defined by the state. In
anticipation of the FDA emergency use authorization to administer Pfizer to the newly eligible
group, SFDPH issued a new emergency health order, C19-19, that enables minors 12 and older
to consent to receive FDA-approved COVID-19 vaccines. The healthcare provider
administering the vaccine must reasonably attempt to notify a person with legal authority to
consent to medical care for that minor, such as a parent or guardian, and allow that person the
opportunity to object administration of that dose.

“People who are hesitant to receive a vaccine are more likely to get one if someone they know
and trust encourages them to do so. This is especially true for teens who may be wary of taking
advice from grownups,” said Mary Ellen Carroll, Executive Director, San Francisco
Department of Emergency Management. “Help us end this pandemic by getting a vaccine and
encouraging your friends, classmates and family to receive one. We must all work together so
we can get back to enjoying our lives together.”

In addition to the new health order, SFDPH and the COVID Command Center have been
making operational plans to accommodate new demand for vaccines and conferred with
school, faith, and community leaders on strategies to promote vaccine access. This effort
included planning sessions with officials at SFDPH’s Population Health Division, San
Francisco Health Network, SFUSD, as well as the City’s Department of Children, Youth and
Their Families (DCYF).

The vaccination strategy for people ages 12-15 includes administering the Pfizer vaccine
throughout San Francisco’s various vaccination sites, including the high-volume sites as well
as select neighborhood sites that are equipped to administer the Pfizer vaccine. It also calls for
establishing family vaccination events, access to informational materials and to doctors at
certain sites to answer questions about the vaccine as well as direct referrals through trusted
community partners and the City’s Community Hubs.

“Through the pandemic, our Community Hubs operated by city and community-based partners
have provided essential in-person supports to our youth and families beyond distance learning
and out of school time activities,” said DCYF Director Maria Su. “Our Hubs will not only
continue to be beacons of hope and support, they will amplify efforts to provide referrals,
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information and direct families to our City’s vaccination resources including standing up
family vaccination sites.”

“We are eager to support our students in accessing vaccines at SFUSD sites in addition to many
other locations across the City. | want to thank the SFUSD staff and our community partners
who have made this possible,” said SFUSD Superintendent Dr. Vincent Matthews.
“Vaccinations are one of the most effective preventative measures in stopping the spread of
COVID-19 and saving lives. | encourage all students who are able to get the vaccine to do so as
soon as possible. It will be an excused absence!”

On Wednesday, May 12 at 7 p.m. San Francisco’s Health Officer Dr. Susan Philip; Dr. Lillian
Brown, Assistant Professor of Medicine at UCSF - HIV, Infectious Diseases; and Global
Medicine and Dr. Lee Atkinson-McEvoy — UCSF Division Chair of Pediatrics hosted a
COVID-19 Pediatric Town Hall to addressed questions from the public. The meeting is
archived on SFGovTV’s YouTube channel: https://youtu.be/y7 0B3sUSNS8. The City will
continue to provide regular updates to the public about the vaccine at SF.gov/covidvaccine.

San Francisco’s commitment to an equitable vaccination strategy has focused on reaching
communities that have been hard-hit by the pandemic, including the Latino community and
neighborhoods in the southeast of the City. A higher proportion of SFDPH-administered
vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide vaccinations. The vaccine
dashboard also shows that the top three neighborhoods receiving the largest amount of DPH-
controlled vaccines are the Bayview, Mission, and Excelsior.

Vaccine Appointment Information
When possible, the City recommends scheduling an appointment to guarantee a spot. Visit

sf.gov/getvaccinated to locate a site that is administering the Pfizer vaccine.

Drop-in sites with the Pfizer vaccine serving residents living in the following priority zip
codes: Bayview (94124), Visitacion Valley (94134), Excelsior/Outer Mission (94112),
Mission/Bernal (94110), Potrero/Dogpatch (94107), Tenderloin (94102), SOMA/Civic
Center (94103), Western Addition (94115) and Treasure Island (94130):
e Bayview: Southeast Health Center, 2401 Keith St., 7 days a week, 9am - 4pm; For residents in
all priority zip codes
e Mission: 24" and Capp, Sunday-Wednesday, 9am - 4pm; Priority given to Mission residents
e Mission: 18" and Shotwell, 3271 18th St., Thursday-Saturday, 11am - 6pm; Priority given to
Mission residents
e Mission/Potrero: Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital, 1001 Potrero Ave., Monday-
Saturday, 8am - 4pm; For residents in all priority zip codes
e Starting May 15 - Sunnydale: 2055 Sunnydale, Saturday, 9:30am - 3pm; Live, work or receive
services in 94112, 94124, 94134
e Starting May 18 — Tenderloin: Larkin Street Youth Service, 134 Golden Gate Ave., Tuesday
9:30-3:30pm; Live, work or receive services in 94102, 94103
e Starting May 19 — OMI: 50 Broad St., Wednesday and Friday 9am — 6 pm, and Saturday 9am —
3pm; Live, work or receive services in 94112, 94127 and 94132
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Drop-in hours at sites serving all eligible residents. If individuals wish to make an
appointment instead, visit the website listed above.

e City College UCSF, 55 Frida Kahlo Way. Drive-thru drop-ins today, 5/13

o SF Market, 901 Rankin Street, Monday-Friday, 9am — 4pm

e University of San Francisco (Operated by Kaiser Permanente), 2975 Turk Blvd, Monday-
Friday, 10am - 12pm and 1pm - 4pm

Muni and Paratransit are free for anyone traveling to and from COVID-19 vaccine
appointments.The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency is also providing
additional access to taxi service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can be
found at sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/paratransit.

Individuals who are 65 and older, with disabilities and who are unable to easily access the
internet or schedule an appointment through their provider, may call (628) 652-2700 to
learn about vaccine options and receive assistance in booking anappointment to some
locations.

Hi#
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the City is currently vaccinating roughly 8,500 residents per day. On May 10, the Food and
Drug Administration (FDA) authorized the emergency use of the Pfizer vaccine for people
between the ages of 12 and 15. Following the additional review by the Advisory Committee
on Immunization Practices and the Western States Scientific Safety Review Workgroup,
which concluded on May 12, the City will begin administering the vaccine to this age group
on Thursday, May 13. Pfizer is the only vaccine approved for individuals younger than 18.

There are approximately 25,000 children ages 12 to15 in San Francisco. The City has
developed a robust distribution infrastructure that includes high-volume vaccination sites,
neighborhood sites, community clinics, pharmacies, and mobile vaccination teams to make
receiving the vaccine as convenient,comfortable and low-barrier for as many people as
possible, particularly in those neighborhoods disproportionately affected by the pandemic.
With this eligibility expansion, SFDPH/COVID Command is collaborating with San
Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) to bring vaccines to select school sites located in
communities that have been hard hit by COVID-19. Those newly eligible and their families
should visit SF.gov/getvaccinated to learn about options for receiving the vaccine and to find
links to schedule appointments at different vaccination sites administering the Pfizer vaccine.

“The fact that we are at a point in this pandemic where we can offer vaccines to youth ages 12
to 15 is a truly remarkable sign of progress,” says Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of the
Department of Public Health. “The more people we vaccinate, the more we can get back to the
things we love without the fear of contracting COVID-19 and spreading it to a friend or loved
one. As we have done with each eligibility expansion, we will continue to work alongside our
partners to ensure equitable access to vaccines for communities that have been most impacted
by COVID-19. I want to encourage everyone to get vaccinated as soon as possible so that we
can all look forward to a great summer.”

Generally, parent or legal guardian consent is required for COVID-19 vaccinations of
minors, unless they meet the criteria for emancipation or self-sufficiency as defined by the
state. In anticipation of the FDA emergency use authorization to administer Pfizer to the
newly eligible group, SFDPH issued a new emergency health order, C19-19, that enables
minors 12 and older to consent to receive FDA-approved COVID-19 vaccines. The
healthcare provider administering the vaccine must reasonably attempt to notify a person
with legal authority to consent to medical care for that minor, such as a parent or guardian,
and allow that person the opportunity to object administration of that dose.

“People who are hesitant to receive a vaccine are more likely to get one if someone they
know and trust encourages them to do so. This is especially true for teens who may be wary
of taking advice from grownups,” said Mary Ellen Carroll, Executive Director, San
Francisco Department of Emergency Management. “Help us end this pandemic by getting a
vaccine and encouraging your friends, classmates and family to receive one. We must all
work together so we can get back to enjoying our lives together.”

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


https://sf.gov/get-vaccinated-against-covid-19
https://www.sfdph.org/dph/alerts/files/Order-C19-19-Vaccination-Minors.pdf

The vaccination strategy for people ages 12-15 includes administering the Pfizer vaccine
throughout San Francisco’s various vaccination sites, including the high-volume sites as
well as select neighborhood sites that are equipped to administer the Pfizer vaccine. It also
calls for establishing family vaccination events, access to informational materials and to
doctors at certain sites to answer questions about the vaccine as well as direct referrals
through trusted community partners and the City’s Community Hubs.

“Through the pandemic, our Community Hubs operated by city and community-based
partners have provided essential in-person supports to our youth and families beyond
distance learning and out of school time activities,” said DCYF Director Maria Su. “Our
Hubs will not only continue to be beacons of hope and support, they will amplify efforts to
provide referrals, information and direct families to our City’s vaccination resources
including standing up family vaccination sites.”

“We are eager to support our students in accessing vaccines at SFUSD sites in addition to
many other locations across the City. I want to thank the SFUSD staff and our community
partners who have made this possible,” said SFUSD Superintendent Dr. Vincent Matthews.
“Vaccinations are one of the most effective preventative measures in stopping the spread of
COVID-19 and saving lives. I encourage all students who are able to get the vaccine to do so
as soon as possible. It will be an excused absence!”

On Wednesday, May 12 at 7 p.m. San Francisco’s Health Officer Dr. Susan Philip; Dr.
Lillian Brown, Assistant Professor of Medicine at UCSF - HIV, Infectious Diseases; and
Global Medicine and Dr. Lee Atkinson-McEvoy — UCSF Division Chair of Pediatrics hosted
a COVID-19 Pediatric Town Hall to addressed questions from the public. The meeting is
archived on SFGovTV’s YouTube channel: https://voutu.be/y7 0B3sUSNS. The City will
continue to provide regular updates to the public about the vaccine at SF.gov/covidvaccine.

San Francisco’s commitment to an equitable vaccination strategy has focused on reaching
communities that have been hard-hit by the pandemic, including the Latino community
and neighborhoods in the southeast of the City. A higher proportion of SFDPH-
administered vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide
vaccinations. The vaccine dashboard also shows that the top three neighborhoods
receiving the largest amount of DPH-controlled vaccines are the Bayview, Mission, and
Excelsior.

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
e Bayview: Southeast Health Center, 2401 Keith St., 7 days a week, 9am - 4pm; For residents
in all priority zip codes

e Mission: 24" and Capp, Sunday-Wednesday, 9am - 4pm; Priority given to Mission residents

e Mission: 18™ and Shotwell, 3271 18th St., Thursday-Saturday, 11am - 6pm; Priority given to
Mission residents

e Mission/Potrero: Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital, 1001 Potrero Ave.,
Monday-Saturday, 8am - 4pm; For residents in all priority zip codes


https://youtu.be/y7_0B3sUSN8
https://sf.gov/covid-19-vaccine-san-francisco
https://data.sfgov.org/stories/s/COVID-19-Vaccinations-Progress/7mye-zncy/
file:////c/sf.gov/getvaccinated

o Starting May 15 - Sunnydale: 2055 Sunnydale, Saturday, 9:30am - 3pm; Live, work or
receive services in 94112, 94124, 94134

e Starting May 18 — Tenderloin: Larkin Street Youth Service, 134 Golden Gate Ave.,
Tuesday 9:30-3:30pm; Live, work or receive services in 94102, 94103

o Starting May 19 — OMI: 50 Broad St., Wednesday and Friday 9am — 6 pm, and Saturday
9am — 3pm; Live, work or receive services in 94112, 94127 and 94132

Drop-in hours at sites serving all eligible residents. If individuals wish to make an
appointment instead, visit the website listed above.
e City College UCSF, 55 Frida Kahlo Way. Drive-thru drop-ins today, 5/13
¢ SF Market, 901 Rankin Street, Monday-Friday, 9am — 4pm
¢ University of San Francisco (Operated by Kaiser Permanente), 2975 Turk Blvd, Monday-
Friday, 10am - 12pm and 1pm - 4pm

Muni and Paratransit are free for anyone traveling to and from COVID-19 vaccine
appointments. The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency is also providing
additional access to taxi service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can
be found at sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/paratransit.

Individuals who are 65 and older, with disabilities and who are unable to easily access
the internet or schedule an appointment through their provider, may call (628) 652-2700
to learn about vaccine options and receive assistance in booking anappointment to some
locations.

H#
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Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES PLAN TO REOPEN CITY HALL TO PUBLIC
Date: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 10:55:19 AM

Attachments: 05.12.21 City Hall Reopening Timeline.pdf

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

Date: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 10:01 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES PLAN TO
REOPEN CITY HALL TO PUBLIC

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, May 12, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.or

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES PLAN TO REOPEN
CITY HALL TO PUBLIC

Starting June 7, City Hall will be open for in-person services and general public access

San Francisco, CA — Today, Mayor London N. Breed and City Administrator Carmen Chu
announced the schedule for reopening City Hall to the public. City Hall was shut down in
March 2020, along with the rest of the City, and has not been open for the general public for
almost 15 months.

Starting Monday, June 7, City Hall will reopen for in-person services and general public
access. This includes in-person services like applying for marriage licenses, obtaining birth
and death certificates, recording documents, and registering businesses as well as payment of
property and business taxes and fees. Counter services will be open for the Treasurer and Tax
Collector’s Office, the Assessor’s Office, County Clerk, Office of Small Business, and other
agencies. The County Clerk will begin to accept online appointments for in-person marriage
ceremonies today and marriage ceremonies (no more than six guests) will resume after City
Hall reopens. In the week prior, starting June 1, some City Hall services will be open for very
limited in-person services by appointment only and not open to the general public. For more
details on the reopening schedules and plans for each Department, visit sf.gov/location/city-
hall.

“Bringing the public back into City Hall is a significant step in our reopening process,” said


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
https://sf.gov/location/city-hall
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
announced the schedule for reopening City Hall to the public. City Hall was shut down in March
2020, along with the rest of the City, and has not been open for the general public for almost 15
months.

Starting Monday, June 7, City Hall will reopen for in-person services and general public access.
This includes in-person services like applying for marriage licenses, obtaining birth and death
certificates, recording documents, and registering businesses as well as payment of property and
business taxes and fees. Counter services will be open for the Treasurer and Tax Collector’s
Office, the Assessor’s Office, County Clerk, Office of Small Business, and other agencies. The
County Clerk will begin to accept online appointments for in-person marriage ceremonies today
and marriage ceremonies (no more than six guests) will resume after City Hall reopens. In the
week prior, starting June 1, some City Hall services will be open for very limited in-person
services by appointment only and not open to the general public. For more details on the
reopening schedules and plans for each Department, visit sf.gov/location/city-hall.

“Bringing the public back into City Hall is a significant step in our reopening process,” said
Mayor London Breed. “City Hall is the heart of our civic life, where people can come to take
care of their basic needs or take part in the most important moment of their life. It’s where we
gather to mourn, to celebrate, and to share in the most important moments of our City. I’m so
excited to see people back in this building, especially on that first day when we see weddings
return. San Francisco is opening up again.”

“With our early successes in vaccine distribution and managing COVID-19, we’re now able to
implement expanded in-person services across San Francisco,” said City Administrator Carmen
Chu. “We’re excited to welcome back the weddings and people into City Hall, but more
importantly, we are excited to ensure that those who haven’t been able to connect with us online
or by phone have another avenue to access critical services.”

Visitors to City Hall are required to wear facial coverings and maintain 6 feet of distance from
members of other households. There may also be additional instructions regarding maximum
occupancy when receiving services at individual offices. Regular security screenings will take
place upon entry at the Goodlett/Polk Street Steps and the Grove Street entrances. The Van Ness
steps and McAllister Street entrances will remain closed.

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

“This is an exciting day for our staff, and a hopeful milestone on the road to our City’s
recovery,” said Treasurer José Cisneros. “Coming to work at City Hall in service to our
taxpayers is always an honor, but it will be truly joyful to return to a building full of city
workers, residents and tourists.”

“Qur office is delighted to be one of the first departments to safely reopen and welcome people
back to City Hall. Throughout this pandemic, we quickly pivoted to working remotely, while
making sure our resources were still accessible to the public,” said Assessor Joaquin Torres.
“Now, once again, whether you are looking to gain answers to your issues, obtain copies of
marriage licenses, record vital documents, or to get access to records for research or review, our
knowledgeable staff is here to serve you and answer any of your questions. Together, by
reopening our doors for service, we are moving forward to provide access and stability for San
Franciscans.”

Throughout the pandemic, City agencies have continued to serve the public by responding to
constituents’ needs through phone, mail, and online services. San Franciscans can continue to
access City services by calling 3-1-1 or visiting sf.gov.

HiH
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Mayor London Breed. “City Hall is the heart of our civic life, where people can come to take
care of their basic needs or take part in the most important moment of their life. It’s where we
gather to mourn, to celebrate, and to share in the most important moments of our City. I’'m so
excited to see people back in this building, especially on that first day when we see weddings
return. San Francisco is opening up again.”

“With our early successes in vaccine distribution and managing COVID-19, we’re now able to
implement expanded in-person services across San Francisco,” said City Administrator
Carmen Chu. “We’re excited to welcome back the weddings and people into City Hall, but
more importantly, we are excited to ensure that those who haven’t been able to connect with
us online or by phone have another avenue to access critical services.”

Visitors to City Hall are required to wear facial coverings and maintain 6 feet of distance from
members of other households. There may also be additional instructions regarding maximum
occupancy when receiving services at individual offices. Regular security screenings will take
place upon entry at the Goodlett/Polk Street Steps and the Grove Street entrances. The Van
Ness steps and McAllister Street entrances will remain closed.

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

“Our office is delighted to be one of the first departments to safely reopen and welcome
people back to City Hall. Throughout this pandemic, we quickly pivoted to working remotely,
while making sure our resources were still accessible to the public,” said Assessor

Joaquin Torres. “Now, once again, whether you are looking to gain answers to your issues,
obtain copies of marriage licenses, record vital documents, or to get access to records for
research or review, our knowledgeable staff is here to serve you and answer any of your
questions. Together, by reopening our doors for service, we are moving forward to provide
access and stability for San Franciscans.”

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MUNI METRO SUBWAY, F-LINE TO RESUME MAY 15
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Director of Commission Affairs
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Monday, May 10, 2021 at 12:04 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MUNI METRO SUBWAY, F-LINE TO RESUME
MAY 15

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, May 10, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MUNI METRO SUBWAY, F-LINE TO RESUME MAY 15

Improvements made during pandemic include maintenance upgrades to provide smoother
rides and enhancements like Wi-Fi in tunnels

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency (SFMTA) today announced the full Muni service plan and Muni Metro
upgrades. All Muni Metro subway stations will reopen and the historic F-line streetcar will
return to service on Saturday, May 15. Additionally, to continue maximizing Muni access
citywide, a new bus route will also be added to the service plan to serve neighborhoods on the
westside of San Francisco. The rollout of additional service coincides with the reopening of
businesses and activities across the city. Muni service is a large component of San Francisco’s
economic recovery.

“Getting San Francisco moving forward requires us doing everything we can to get Muni back
to full service,” said Mayor Breed. “As we reopen more businesses and activities, it’s essential
that our transit service is able to accommodate more passengers and help people get around
our city. This weekend, Muni subway service, the F-Line, and more full routes are returning,
and Muni is coming back even stronger with new improvements like Wi-Fi in the subway
tunnels.”

In addition to the reopening of subway stations and the F-Line, on May 15, the N

Judah Metro rail service will resume its full route between Ocean Beach and 4™ and King
Street (Caltrain), and the T Third will be extended to West Portal and then continue on,
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

Improvements made during pandemic include maintenance upgrades to provide smoother rides
and enhancements like Wi-Fi in tunnels

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency (SFMTA) today announced the full Muni service plan and Muni Metro upgrades. All
Muni Metro subway stations will reopen and the historic F-line streetcar will return to service on
Saturday, May 15. Additionally, to continue maximizing Muni access citywide, a new bus route
will also be added to the service plan to serve neighborhoods on the westside of San Francisco.
The rollout of additional service coincides with the reopening of businesses and activities across
the city. Muni service is a large component of San Francisco’s economic recovery.

“Getting San Francisco moving forward requires us doing everything we can to get Muni back to
full service,” said Mayor Breed. “As we reopen more businesses and activities, it’s essential that
our transit service is able to accommodate more passengers and help people get around our city.
This weekend, Muni subway service, the F-Line, and more full routes are returning, and Muni is
coming back even stronger with new improvements like Wi-Fi in the subway tunnels.”

In addition to the reopening of subway stations and the F-Line, on May 15, the N

Judah Metro rail service will resume its full route between Ocean Beach and 4™ and King Street
(Caltrain), and the T Third will be extended to West Portal and then continue on, running as

the K Ingleside to Balboa Park Station. With the return of rail service to these routes, customers
will have faster transit times downtown, as well as to other popular destinations

including the Castro, City College, Ocean Beach, Golden Gate Park, Oracle Park, Chase
Center, UCSF Parnassus, UCSF Mission Bay, and Caltrain.

Muni trains will run through a much more reliable subway system. Muni staff used this rare,
extended subway shutdown as an opportunity to accelerate other upgrades and necessary
maintenance work. During normal service, subway maintenance crews can only work within the
few hours a day when trains are not running.

Key improvements for Muni Metro riders include:
e Wi-Fi availability thanks to routers installed in stations and cellular antennas installed in
the tunnels.
e Installation of new wayfinding and directional signs at Castro and Church stations.
e Quicker and smoother trips as a result of overhead line enhancements and rail grinding.
e Public art at the entrance and exit at Castro and West Portal stations.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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After working closely with Castro, mid-Market and Fisherman’s Wharf merchants, the full F
Market & Wharves route from Fisherman’s Wharf to Market and Castro will return to service on
San Francisco’s beloved, historic streetcars. This return to service will help support the city’s
reopening and return of tourism.

In response to customer feedback for improved service to connect hospitals, grocery stores, and
vaccination sites in hilly areas, SFMTA is also introducing a temporary new combined route—
the 36/52 Special. This bus route will serve the hilltop neighborhoods of Forest Hill, Miraloma,
and Sunnyside in a loop between Forest Hill Station and Glen Park Station. Currently, 91% of
San Franciscans are within two to three blocks of a Muni stop, including 100% of residents in
San Francisco’s neighborhoods identified in the Muni Service Equity Strateqy.

“There is no economic recovery without public transit,” said Jeffrey Tumlin, SFMTA Director of
Transportation. “Our staff is committed to keeping San Francisco moving and is working
tirelessly to bring Muni service back better than ever.”

May 15, 2021 Muni Service Changes

Service hours for each route are noted below. Owl network service hours are 10 p.m. to 5 a.m.
daily. For more information on frequency and hours of service, read more on the COVID-19
Muni Core Service Plan.

F Market & Wharves
The historic streetcar will return to service between 17" and Castro Streets and Jones and Beach
Streets.
e Service hours:
o From Castro: Approximately 11 a.m. to 7 p.m. (first trip departing from
Castro Station is 10:50 a.m.)
o From Fisherman’s Wharf: Approximately 12 p.m. to 8 p.m.
o Use the L Bus or L Owl for local service along Market Street during the hours when the F
IS not running.

K Ingleside/T Third

The K Ingleside and T Third will interline as the KT Ingleside-Third, expanding

service between Balboa Park and Sunnydale. This route will use the newly reopened Muni Metro
subway, serving all stations between West Portal and Embarcadero.

« Service hours
o Weekdays: 6 a.m. to 9 p.m.

o Weekends: 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.

o Between the hours of Owl service (10 p.m. to 5 a.m.) and rail service, Muni Metro buses
will provide service from 9 p.m. to 10 p.m. on weekdays, and 5 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 9 p.m.
to 10 p.m. on weekends.

o The K Bus will run between Balboa Park and West Portal Station from 9 p.m. to
10 p.m, daily.
e During the weekend, for the hours between Owl service (10 p.m. to 5 a.m.) and rail

service, the K Ingleside bus will run between Balboa Park and Embarcadero-Ferry
1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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Plaza from 5am to 8am and the T Third bus will run between Embarcadero-Ferry Plaza
and Sunnydale.

N Judah
Rail service will resume for the entire route with two-car trains replacing Metro buses. Riders
will have more room and fewer pass ups as the two-car train increases the N Judah’s capacity.

« Service hours
o Weekdays: 6 a.m. to 9 p.m.
o Weekends: 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.

e Muni Metro buses will cover the hours between Owl Service and rail service, running 5
a.m. to 6 a.m. and 9 p.m. to 10 p.m. on weekdays and 5 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 9 p.m. to 10
p.m. on weekends.

K Bus, L Bus and L Owl
e These lines will no longer serve Forest Hill Station directly. Please visit K Bus, L
Bus and L Owl route pages for more information.

36/52 Special*

e Temporary new combined route between Forest Hill Station and Glen Park Station
serving the Glen Park, Sunnyside and Miraloma communities. The route will serve
Laguna Honda Hospital.

e The inbound (clockwise) route will include an additional loop on Clarendon.

8 Bayshore

e The current 8AX Bayshore “A” Express service will become the 8 Bayshore short
between City College and Kearny at Pacific. Service for this route ends at
7:30 p.m. daily.

e The 8 Bayshore long will continue to travel between City College and Fisherman’s
Wharf.

« The 8 Bayshore will return to its pre-pandemic route traveling north on Kearny,
instead of Stockton.

To help stop the spread of COVID-19, face masks are required by federal law in Muni stations,
when purchasing a ticket and while waiting for, boarding, riding or exiting transit. More
information on the SFMTA'’s service can be found on their website.

HiH
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running as the K Ingleside to Balboa Park Station. With the return of rail service to

these routes, customers will have faster transit times downtown, as well as to other popular
destinations including the Castro, City College, Ocean Beach, Golden Gate Park, Oracle Park,
Chase Center, UCSF Parnassus, UCSF Mission Bay, and Caltrain.

Muni trains will run through a much more reliable subway system. Muni staff used this rare,
extended subway shutdown as an opportunity to accelerate other upgrades and necessary
maintenance work. During normal service, subway maintenance crews can only work within
the few hours a day when trains are not running.

Key improvements for Muni Metro riders include:
o Wi-Fi availability thanks to routers installed in stations and cellular antennas installed in
the tunnels.
o Installation of new wayfinding and directional signs at Castro and Church stations.
 Quicker and smoother trips as a result of overhead line enhancements and rail grinding.
o Public art at the entrance and exit at Castro and West Portal stations.

After working closely with Castro, mid-Market and Fisherman’s Wharf merchants, the full F
Market & Wharves route from Fisherman’s Wharf to Market and Castro will return to

service on San Francisco’s beloved, historic streetcars. This return to service will help support
the city’s reopening and return of tourism.

In response to customer feedback for improved service to connect hospitals, grocery

stores, and vaccination sites in hilly areas, SFMTA is also introducing a temporary new
combined route—the 36/52 Special. This bus route will serve the hilltop neighborhoods of
Forest Hill, Miraloma, and Sunnyside in a loop between Forest Hill Station and Glen

Park Station. Currently, 91% of San Franciscans are within two to three blocks of a Muni stop,
including 100% of residents in San Francisco’s neighborhoods identified in the Muni Service

Equity Strategy.

“There is no economic recovery without public transit,” said Jeffrey Tumlin, SFMTA Director
of Transportation. “Our staff is committed to keeping San Francisco moving and is working
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

The historic streetcar will return to service between 1
Beach Streets.
e Service hours:
o From Castro: Approximately 11 a.m. to 7 p.m. (first trip departing from
Castro Station is 10:50 a.m.)
o From Fisherman’s Whart: Approximately 12 p.m. to 8 p.m.
o Use the L Bus or L Owl for local service along Market Street during the hours when the
F is not running.

7t and Castro Streets and Jones and

K Ingleside/T Third


https://www.sfmta.com/projects/muni-service-equity-strategy
https://www.sfmta.com/projects/muni-service-equity-strategy
https://www.sfmta.com/travel-updates/covid-19-muni-core-service-plan
https://www.sfmta.com/travel-updates/covid-19-muni-core-service-plan
https://www.sfmta.com/routes/l-taraval-bus
https://www.sfmta.com/routes/l-owl

The K Ingleside and T Third will interline as the KT Ingleside-Third, expanding
service between Balboa Park and Sunnydale. This route will use the newly reopened Muni
Metro subway, serving all stations between West Portal and Embarcadero.
e Service hours
o Weekdays: 6 a.m. to 9 p.m.
o Weekends: 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.
e Between the hours of Owl service (10 p.m. to 5 a.m.) and rail service, Muni Metro buses
will provide service from 9 p.m. to 10 p.m. on weekdays, and 5 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 9
p.m. to 10 p.m. on weekends.
o The K Bus will run between Balboa Park and West Portal Station from 9 p.m. to
10 p.m, daily.
¢ During the weekend, for the hours between Owl service (10 p.m. to 5 a.m.) and rail
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
o Weekdays: 6 am. to 9 p.m.
o Weekends: 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.
¢ Muni Metro buses will cover the hours between Owl Service and rail service, running 5
a.m. to 6 a.m. and 9 p.m. to 10 p.m. on weekdays and 5 a.m. to 8§ a.m. and 9 p.m. to 10
p.m. on weekends.

K Bus, L Bus and L. Owl
o These lines will no longer serve Forest Hill Station directly. Please visit K Bus, L
Bus and L Owl route pages for more information.

36/52 Special*

o Temporary new combined route between Forest Hill Station and Glen Park Station
serving the Glen Park, Sunnyside and Miraloma communities. The route will serve
Laguna Honda Hospital.

¢ The inbound (clockwise) route will include an additional loop on Clarendon.

8 Bayshore

e The current 8AX Bayshore “A” Express service will become the 8 Bayshore short
between City College and Kearny at Pacific. Service for this route ends at
7:30 p.m. daily.

o The 8 Bayshore long will continue to travel between City College and Fisherman’s
Wharf.

o The 8 Bayshore will return to its pre-pandemic route traveling north on Kearny,
instead of Stockton.

To help stop the spread of COVID-19, face masks are required by federal law in Muni
stations, when purchasing a ticket and while waiting for, boarding, riding or exiting transit.
More information on the SFMTA’s service can be found on their website.


https://www.sfmta.com/routes/k-ingleside-bus
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO CREATE STREET WELLNESS
RESPONSE TEAM TO EXPAND SERVICES FOR THOSE IN NEED

Date: Monday, May 10, 2021 11:34:31 AM

Attachments: 05.10.21 Street Wellness Response Team.pdf

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

Date: Monday, May 10, 2021 at 11:01 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO
CREATE STREET WELLNESS RESPONSE TEAM TO EXPAND SERVICES FOR
THOSE IN NEED

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, May 10, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO CREATE
STREET WELLNESS RESPONSE TEAM TO EXPAND
SERVICES FOR THOSE IN NEED

Building on the success of the Street Crisis Response Team pilot program, the new team will
provide an effective, non-police response to people who are not in crisis but need attention
and support on San Francisco’s streets

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a plan to create a new Street
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
behavioral health care needs. San Francisco’s Street Crisis Response Teams (SCRT) will
continue operating to address the needs of people experiencing behavioral health crises.

“Building on the early success of the Street Crisis Response Team, we are continuing our
work to make a significant change to improve how we effectively serve people in need on our
streets,” said Mayor Breed. “Many calls to 911 or 311 about someone who appears to need
help on our streets don’t require an armed police response, and often the services and care
people need would be best provided by a paramedic or outreach worker instead of a police
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
provide an effective, non-police response to people who are not in crisis but need attention and
support on San Francisco’s streets

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a plan to create a new Street
Wellness Response Team to improve outcomes for people in need on San Francisco’s streets and
advance the City’s efforts to implement alternatives to police responses to non-violent calls. The
Street Wellness Response Team will provide an appropriate medical and social service response
for people who require immediate assistance but do not have emergent behavioral health care
needs. San Francisco’s Street Crisis Response Teams (SCRT) will continue operating to address
the needs of people experiencing behavioral health crises.

“Building on the early success of the Street Crisis Response Team, we are continuing our work
to make a significant change to improve how we effectively serve people in need on our streets,”
said Mayor Breed. “Many calls to 911 or 311 about someone who appears to need help on our
streets don’t require an armed police response, and often the services and care people need would
be best provided by a paramedic or outreach worker instead of a police officer. As we work to
recover from COVID-19, part of making our city stronger and healthier requires pushing forward
on our efforts to help people experiencing homelessness and who are on our streets in need of
assistance and connections to housing. The Street Wellness Response Team will work alongside
the Street Crisis Response Teams. Together, these Street Response Teams will meet people
where they are and provide the level of care that is needed.”

The Street Wellness Response Team will consist of community paramedics and EMTs from the
San Francisco Fire Department (SFFD) and Homeless Outreach Team members from the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH). They will be dispatched to focus
on well-being checks and situations that require immediate attention, but do not meet the
threshold of an acute behavioral health crisis. This includes situations such as someone with
obvious wounds, people who are lying down or sleeping, or someone inappropriately clothed for
the weather.

SFFD community paramedics, which also support the Street Crisis Response Team, will perform
medical, behavioral, and social needs assessments, render immediate aid if needed, and along
with the homeless outreach worker, will be able to offer meaningful connections to services and
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housing. The new team will be deployed on 12-hour shifts in an SFFD vehicle and have the
ability to provide transportation services to individuals who might need that as part of the
engagement.

As with SCRT, the new Street Wellness Response Team will be able to respond directly to 911
and 311 calls for service. The team will analyze 911 and 311 calls for service to strategically
assign teams to be in areas where there is high need and proactively respond to people in distress
on the street who are not in an acute behavioral health crisis. Integrating these teams with 911
and 311 dispatch will also help with tracking data and outcomes to ensure efficacy of the
program.

Existing outreach teams like the Homeless Outreach Team and Harm Reduction Outreach teams
will continue to operate, complementing the Community Response Teams by providing ongoing,
specialized outreach to people experiencing homelessness who need support to stabilize and
move from streets to housing.

The Mayor’s proposed budget for Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23, which will be submitted by
June 1, 2021, will include $9.6 million to fund five teams over two years. If this team is
approved in the Budget when it is finalized at the end of July, they would begin the operational
planning, developing protocols—including risk assessment and dispatch—and launch at least
one team by January 2022 and build up to five teams total by April 2022.

“The San Francisco Fire Department’s Community Paramedic Division stands ready to build
another team to deliver the much needed services to people of the City and County of San
Francisco,” said Chief Jeanine Nicholson, San Francisco Fire Department. “Mayor Breed has
recognized the positive impact that community paramedicine has had with the recently
implemented Street Crisis Response Team and EMS6. The SFFD looks forward to being a part
of the solution to improving people’s lives as well as overall street conditions.”

“The Street Wellness Response Team will provide dignified and compassionate care to people
experiencing homelessness on our streets and in our neighborhoods,” said Shireen McSpadden,
Director of the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We
appreciate this investment in making our communities safer and more humane for all residents of
San Francisco.”

During the rollout of SCRT, the City has continued to focus on the next steps needed to provide
better services and outcomes for people on the street and end the use of police as first responders
when an armed response is not needed. Led by the Mayor’s office, City departments including
SFFD, Department of Emergency Management, San Francisco Police Department, the
Department of Public Health, HSH, San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, City
Administrator’s office, and Public Works, have been identifying and analyzing further calls that
could be diverted from the police and handled by different non-law enforcement entities in a
manner that is safe, sustainable for the long-term, and delivers better service for those in need of
assistance.
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In 2019, there were approximately 18,000 calls for assistance regarding “well-being checks” that
were fielded by both 911 and 311 in which the police were ultimately deployed to respond. This
is one of the highest-volume call categories currently being answered by police after the calls
regarding “mentally disturbed adults” that have already been diverted to SCRT. To address these
“well-being” requests and provide more proactive outreach, Mayor Breed is proposing these new
teams to operate in concert with SCRT and the City’s continuum of services.

“There is a lot of stigma against people having a mental health crisis on the streets,” said Miguel
Levya, a peer counselor for SCRT. “We find we can deescalate most situations by treating them
the way everyone wants to be treated — with kindness and respect. This offers the best approach
for getting them the help they need, and resolving any disturbances that have happened.”

Street Crisis Response Team Background

In June 2020, Mayor Breed announced a roadmap to fundamentally change the nature of policing
in San Francisco and issued a set of policies to address structural inequities. She proposed four
priorities to achieve this vision: ending the use of police in response to non-criminal activity;
addressing police bias and strengthening accountability; demilitarizing the police; and promoting
economic justice.

The Street Crisis Response Team launched in November 2020 to change the way San Francisco
responds to non-violent, mental health crises on our streets. The SCRT pilot program offers a
unique model for the nation with a behavioral health and harm reduction approach to people in
distress. Each SCRT neighborhood team consists of a paramedic, a behavioral health clinician,
and peer health worker.

SCRT launched its fourth team on Monday, May 10. These teams are currently operating in the
Tenderloin, the Castro/Mission, the Bayview, and the Northeast/Waterfront/Chinatown area. The
program will be fully deployed by the end of the summer after a fifth team comes on board to
cover remaining geographic areas while a sixth team provides city-wide 24/7 coverage.

By April, the teams had responded to more than 700 calls with an average response time of 15
minutes. The vast majority of those calls, or 82%, were dispatched from 911. All in all, the
SCRT diverted 19% of “mentally disturbed person” calls from dispatch, demonstrating that the
SCRT program can be a clear alternative to law enforcement. In 53% of the cases, the SCRT was
able to resolve the crisis on the scene and in 37% of the cases the client was transported to the
hospital or a social or behavioral provider who could provide more intensive medical support or
behavioral health treatment.

HiH
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officer. As we work to recover from COVID-19, part of making our city stronger and healthier
requires pushing forward on our efforts to help people experiencing homelessness and who are
on our streets in need of assistance and connections to housing. The Street Wellness Response
Team will work alongside the Street Crisis Response Teams. Together, these Street Response
Teams will meet people where they are and provide the level of care that is needed.”

The Street Wellness Response Team will consist of community paramedics and EMTs from
the San Francisco Fire Department (SFFD) and Homeless Outreach Team members from the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH). They will be dispatched to
focus on well-being checks and situations that require immediate attention, but do not meet the
threshold of an acute behavioral health crisis. This includes situations such as someone with
obvious wounds, people who are lying down or sleeping, or someone inappropriately clothed
for the weather.

SFFD community paramedics, which also support the Street Crisis Response Team, will
perform medical, behavioral, and social needs assessments, render immediate aid if needed,
and along with the homeless outreach worker, will be able to offer meaningful connections to
services and housing. The new team will be deployed on 12-hour shifts in an SFFD vehicle
and have the ability to provide transportation services to individuals who might need that as
part of the engagement.

As with SCRT, the new Street Wellness Response Team will be able to respond directly to
911 and 311 calls for service. The team will analyze 911 and 311 calls for service to
strategically assign teams to be in areas where there is high need and proactively respond to
people in distress on the street who are not in an acute behavioral health crisis. Integrating
these teams with 911 and 311 dispatch will also help with tracking data and outcomes to
ensure efficacy of the program.

Existing outreach teams like the Homeless Outreach Team and Harm Reduction Outreach
teams will continue to operate, complementing the Community Response Teams by providing
ongoing, specialized outreach to people experiencing homelessness who need support to
stabilize and move from streets to housing.

The Mayor’s proposed budget for Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23, which will be submitted
by June 1, 2021, will include $9.6 million to fund five teams over two years. If this team is
approved in the Budget when it is finalized at the end of July, they would begin the
operational planning, developing protocols—including risk assessment and dispatch—and
launch at least one team by January 2022 and build up to five teams total by April 2022.

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
implemented Street Crisis Response Team and EMS6. The SFFD looks forward to being a
part of the solution to improving people’s lives as well as overall street conditions.”

“The Street Wellness Response Team will provide dignified and compassionate care to people
experiencing homelessness on our streets and in our neighborhoods,” said Shireen
McSpadden, Director of the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive
Housing. “We appreciate this investment in making our communities safer and more humane



for all residents of San Francisco.”

During the rollout of SCRT, the City has continued to focus on the next steps needed to
provide better services and outcomes for people on the street and end the use of police as first
responders when an armed response is not needed. Led by the Mayor’s office, City
departments including SFFD, Department of Emergency Management, San Francisco Police
Department, the Department of Public Health, HSH, San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency, City Administrator’s office, and Public Works, have been identifying and analyzing
further calls that could be diverted from the police and handled by different non-law
enforcement entities in a manner that is safe, sustainable for the long-term, and delivers better
service for those in need of assistance.

In 2019, there were approximately 18,000 calls for assistance regarding “well-being checks”
that were fielded by both 911 and 311 in which the police were ultimately deployed to
respond. This is one of the highest-volume call categories currently being answered by police
after the calls regarding “mentally disturbed adults” that have already been diverted to SCRT.
To address these “well-being” requests and provide more proactive outreach, Mayor Breed is
proposing these new teams to operate in concert with SCRT and the City’s continuum of
services.

“There is a lot of stigma against people having a mental health crisis on the streets,” said
Miguel Levya, a peer counselor for SCRT. “We find we can deescalate most situations by
treating them the way everyone wants to be treated — with kindness and respect. This offers
the best approach for getting them the help they need, and resolving any disturbances that have
happened.”

Street Crisis Response Team Background

In June 2020, Mayor Breed announced a roadmap to fundamentally change the nature of
policing in San Francisco and issued a set of policies to address structural inequities. She
proposed four priorities to achieve this vision: ending the use of police in response to non-
criminal activity; addressing police bias and strengthening accountability; demilitarizing the
police; and promoting economic justice.

The Street Crisis Response Team launched in November 2020 to change the way San
Francisco responds to non-violent, mental health crises on our streets. The SCRT pilot
program offers a unique model for the nation with a behavioral health and harm reduction
approach to people in distress. Each SCRT neighborhood team consists of a paramedic, a
behavioral health clinician, and peer health worker.

SCRT launched its fourth team on Monday, May 10. These teams are currently operating in
the Tenderloin, the Castro/Mission, the Bayview, and the Northeast/Waterfront/Chinatown
area. The program will be fully deployed by the end of the summer after a fifth team comes on
board to cover remaining geographic areas while a sixth team provides city-wide 24/7
coverage.

By April, the teams had responded to more than 700 calls with an average response time of 15
minutes. The vast majority of those calls, or 82%, were dispatched from 911. All in all, the
SCRT diverted 19% of “mentally disturbed person” calls from dispatch, demonstrating that
the SCRT program can be a clear alternative to law enforcement. In 53% of the cases, the
SCRT was able to resolve the crisis on the scene and in 37% of the cases the client was



transported to the hospital or a social or behavioral provider who could provide more intensive
medical support or behavioral health treatment.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO PROPOSES ART INSTALLATION TO HONOR BLACK LIVES,
HISTORY OF AFRICAN AMERICANS

Date: Friday, May 07, 2021 1:50:45 PM

Attachments: 05.07.21 Monumental Reckoning Proposal.pdf

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

Date: Friday, May 7, 2021 at 1:49 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO PROPOSES ART INSTALLATION
TO HONOR BLACK LIVES, HISTORY OF AFRICAN AMERICANS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, May 7, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.or

Video of the proposed installation is available here.

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO PROPOSES ART INSTALLATION TO
HONOR BLACK LIVES, HISTORY OF AFRICAN AMERICANS

Opening of ‘Monumental Reckoning’ sculpture in Golden Gate Park would coincide with
Juneteenth

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the City of San Francisco is
planning a new public art installation to honor Black lives and the history of African
Americans. The installation is planned to be located be located in Golden Gate Park’s Music
Concourse next month, in time for Juneteenth.

The installation, Monumental Reckoning, by Bay Area sculptor Dana King, honors the first
Africans stolen from their homeland and sold into chattel slavery in the New World. The
installation consists of 350 sculptures representing the number of Africans initially forced onto
the slave ship San Juan Bautista for a journey of death and suffering across the Atlantic. A
handful of these original 350 ancestors became America’s first enslaved people.

The sculptural figures created in all black steel with vinyl tubing, each standing four feet high,
would surround the empty pedestal where a statue of Francis Scott Key once stood. Key, who
wrote the lyrics to the Star Spangled Banner, was a slave owner and abolition opponent.
Protestors toppled the statue on Juneteenth 2020.
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

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
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
planning a new public art installation to honor Black lives and the history of African Americans.
The installation is planned to be located be located in Golden Gate Park’s Music Concourse next
month, in time for Juneteenth.

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

“The art and monuments that we choose to display in our city and the civic art that fills our
public spaces must reflect the diversity of our community, and honor our history,” said Mayor
Breed. “This powerful public art installation in Golden Gate Park will help us not only
commemorate Juneteenth, but also serve as an example of how we can honor our past, no matter
how painful, and reflect on the challenges that are still with us today.”

Monumental Reckoning would allow visitors to commune with the figures. The phrase “Lift
Every Voice” would shine from atop the nearby Spreckels Temple of Music through a second,
connected piece by Illuminate the Arts. These are the first three words of “Lift Every Voice and
Sing,” a song written by civil rights champion James Weldon Johnson and first performed in
1900—the same year the Spreckels Temple of Music opened. For more than a century, Johnson’s
song of unity has been sung as the Black national anthem. United States Representative James
Clyburn is currently leading an effort to have the song named America’s national hymn.

“I’m excited to see the new monument go up in Golden Gate Park to honor Black lives and the
rich history of African Americans,” said Board of Supervisors President Shamann Walton. “I
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think this is a perfect example of trying to right a wrong. Rather than uplifting individuals with
oppressive histories, this is an opportunity to honor diversity and our community through public
art.”

The installation was approved by both the San Francisco Arts Commission and the San Francisco
Recreation and Park Commission’s Operations Committee this week. It is currently under review
by the Planning Commission. “Lift Every Voice” will also need to be approved by the City’s
Historical Preservation Committee before it can be installed. If approved, Monumental
Reckoning would open to the public on June 19 or Juneteenth 2021, which commemorates the
end of slavery in the U.S. The art piece would remain in place through June 20, 2023.

“The memory of African descendants deserves to be told truthfully and publicly,” said Dana
King, the sculptor of Monumental Reckoning. “Monumental Reckoning fulfils both objectives
with the installation of 350 ancestors who will encircle the Francis Scott Key plinth in Golden
Gate Park. The ancestors stand in judgement, holding history accountable to the terror inflicted
on the first group of enslaved people brought here in 1619 to the last person sold to another, all
victims of chattel slavery. Even though the business of enslavement ended long ago, it still
resonates generationally for African Americans and forms the bedrock from which systems of
oppression proliferate today.”

“What Dana King’s powerful installation communicates and commemorates is a sober cultural
gut-punch long overdue, and | hope it’s the beginning of many such visual testaments in the
public realm that venerate the origin stories of our most marginalized and disenfranchised
populations,” said Ralph Remington, San Francisco’s Director of Cultural Affairs. “We almost
never see images of Black people represented in our public monuments, or in the American
telling of history. So it’s no surprise that in a society rooted in white supremacy, people of color
remain invisible and undervalued in our mythology, symbols, architecture and national narrative.
While the City examines the historic works in our Civic Art Collection and the future of
monuments in San Francisco, this installation will help build and advance a discourse about who
and what we venerate in our open spaces.”

“We are incredibly proud to host this powerful piece,” said San Francisco Recreation and Park
Department General Manager Phil Ginsburg. “Monumental Reckoning prompts frank discussion
about the legacy of slavery, while charting a course between past, present and future. We are
grateful to have these crucial conversations in Golden Gate Park—a beloved public space that
belongs to everyone.”

Fundraising, community outreach, and ongoing support for the installation is being provided by
the Museum of the African Diaspora. Creative and programming support would be provided by
The Black Woman is God, which is an annual group exhibition of Black women artists curated
by Karen Seneferu and Melorra Green. The project celebrates Black women as essential to
building a more just society and sustainable future and reclaims space historically denied to
Black women artists.
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“The art and monuments that we choose to display in our city and the civic art that fills our
public spaces must reflect the diversity of our community, and honor our history,” said Mayor
Breed. “This powerful public art installation in Golden Gate Park will help us not only
commemorate Juneteenth, but also serve as an example of how we can honor our past, no
matter how painful, and reflect on the challenges that are still with us today.”

Monumental Reckoning would allow visitors to commune with the figures. The phrase “Lift
Every Voice” would shine from atop the nearby Spreckels Temple of Music through a second,
connected piece by Illuminate the Arts. These are the first three words of “Lift Every Voice
and Sing,” a song written by civil rights champion James Weldon Johnson and first performed
in 1900—the same year the Spreckels Temple of Music opened. For more than a century,
Johnson’s song of unity has been sung as the Black national anthem. United States
Representative James Clyburn is currently leading an effort to have the song named America’s
national hymn.

“I’m excited to see the new monument go up in Golden Gate Park to honor Black lives and the
rich history of African Americans,” said Board of Supervisors President Shamann Walton. “I
think this is a perfect example of trying to right a wrong. Rather than uplifting individuals with
oppressive histories, this is an opportunity to honor diversity and our community through
public art.”

The installation was approved by both the San Francisco Arts Commission and the San
Francisco Recreation and Park Commission’s Operations Committee this week. It is currently
under review by the Planning Commission. “Lift Every Voice” will also need to be approved
by the City’s Historical Preservation Committee before it can be installed. If approved,
Monumental Reckoning would open to the public on June 19 or Juneteenth 2021, which
commemorates the end of slavery in the U.S. The art piece would remain in place through
June 20, 2023.

“The memory of African descendants deserves to be told truthfully and publicly,” said Dana
King, the sculptor of Monumental Reckoning. “Monumental Reckoning fulfils both objectives
with the installation of 350 ancestors who will encircle the Francis Scott Key plinth in Golden
Gate Park. The ancestors stand in judgement, holding history accountable to the terror
inflicted on the first group of enslaved people brought here in 1619 to the last person sold to
another, all victims of chattel slavery. Even though the business of enslavement ended long
ago, it still resonates generationally for African Americans and forms the bedrock from which
systems of oppression proliferate today.”

“What Dana King’s powerful installation communicates and commemorates is a sober cultural
gut-punch long overdue, and I hope it’s the beginning of many such visual testaments in the
public realm that venerate the origin stories of our most marginalized and disenfranchised
populations,” said Ralph Remington, San Francisco’s Director of Cultural Affairs. “We almost
never see images of Black people represented in our public monuments, or in the American
telling of history. So it’s no surprise that in a society rooted in white supremacy, people of
color remain invisible and undervalued in our mythology, symbols, architecture and national
narrative. While the City examines the historic works in our Civic Art Collection and the
future of monuments in San Francisco, this installation will help build and advance a discourse
about who and what we venerate in our open spaces.”

“We are incredibly proud to host this powerful piece,” said San Francisco Recreation and Park



Department General Manager Phil Ginsburg. “Monumental Reckoning prompts frank
discussion about the legacy of slavery, while charting a course between past, present and

future. We are grateful to have these crucial conversations in Golden Gate Park—a beloved
public space that belongs to everyone.”

Fundraising, community outreach, and ongoing support for the installation is being provided
by the Museum of the African Diaspora. Creative and programming support would be

provided by The Black Woman is God, which is an annual group exhibition of Black women
artists curated by Karen Seneferu and Melorra Green. The project celebrates Black women as

essential to building a more just society and sustainable future and reclaims space historically
denied to Black women artists.
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